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EXPLANATORY FOREWORD
1

INTRODUCTION
This foreword provides a brief explanation of the financial aspects of the Council’s activities and highlights
the significant features of its financial position.
The Income and Expenditure Account is intended to show the financial results for the year in accordance
with generally accepted accounting practice, prior to the implementation of entries which are made by
statute, in order to reflect financial results supported by Council Tax. These entries are detailed within note
13 to the core financial statements.
The deficit reported at the bottom of the Income and Expenditure Account is therefore significantly different
from the movement on the General Fund. The Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance
combines the balance on the Income and Expenditure Account, the items shown at note 13 to the core
financial statements and the General Fund balance at 1 April 2008, to arrive at the closing balance on the
General Fund at 31 March 2009.

2

THE ACCOUNTS COMPRISE THE FOLLOWING:
Core Financial Statements
•

Income and Expenditure Account
This Account summarises the resources that have been generated and consumed in providing services
and managing the Council during the year. It includes all day-to-day expenses and related income on an
accruals basis, as well as transactions measuring the value of fixed assets actually consumed and the
real projected value of retirement benefits earned by employees in the year.

•

Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance
The Income and Expenditure Account shows the Council’s actual financial performance for the year,
measured in terms of the resources consumed and generated over the last twelve months. However the
Council is required to raise Council Tax on a different accounting basis, the main differences being:
o

Capital investment is accounted for as it is financed, rather than when the fixed assets are
consumed.

o

The payment of a share of housing capital receipts to the Government results in a reduction in
the Income and Expenditure Account, but is met from the useable capital receipts balance rather
than Council Tax.

o

Retirement benefits are charged as amounts become payable to the pension fund and
pensioners, rather than as future benefits are earned.

The General Fund Balance compares the Council’s spending against Council Tax that it raised for the
year, taking into account the use of reserves built up in the past and contributions to reserves earmarked
for future spending.
The Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance summarises the differences between the
outturn on the Income and Expenditure Account and the General Fund Balance.
•

Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses
This statement brings together all the gains and losses of the Council for the year and shows the
aggregate increase in its net worth. In addition to the deficit generated on the Income and Expenditure
Account, it includes gains and losses relating to the revaluation of fixed assets and re-measurement of
the net liability to cover the cost of retirement benefits.
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•

Balance Sheet
This statement shows the Council’s balances and reserves and its long-term indebtedness. It also
shows the fixed and net current assets employed in the Council’s operations.

•

Cash Flow Statement
This consolidated statement summarises the inflows and outflows of cash arising from transactions with
third parties for revenue and capital purposes.

Supplementary Statements

3

•

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Income and Expenditure Account
The Council has a statutory duty to account separately for the provision of local authority housing. The
statement shows the income and expenditure on HRA services included within the whole authority
Income and Expenditure Account.

•

Statement of Movement on the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Balance
This statement shows how the HRA Income and Expenditure Account surplus or deficit for the year
reconciles to the movement on the Housing Revenue Account Balance for the year.

•

Collection Fund Income and Expenditure Account
The Council has a statutory duty to maintain a separate Collection Fund. The fund shows the
transactions of the billing authority (the Council) in relation to National Non-domestic Rates, Council Tax
and Community Charge and how these amounts have been distributed to precepting authorities and to
the Council.

IMPACT OF ECONOMIC CLIMATE
The present economic climate has affected the following items within the Statement of Accounts:
•

Council's external valuers were instructed to perform an impairment review of the Council’s fixed assets.
This resulted in some classes of asset being reduced in value. A significant reduction has been applied
to the Housing stock. Impairment losses have been written off against revaluation gains attributable
to the relevant asset in the revaluation reserve with any excess being charged to the relevant service
account in the Income and Expenditure Account. This has caused a significant increase in the deficit of
the Income and Expenditure Account. Charges to the Income and Expenditure Account for impairment
are appropriated from the Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance to the Capital
Adjustment Account so there is no impact as a result of the impairment on the level of Council Tax or
Council Rents. Further information is shown in note 14 to the Core Financial Statements.

•

Interest received on surplus funds invested reduced in 2008/09 from that received in 2007/08, due
to falling interest rates, as shown in note 20 to the Core Financial Statements. However, the Council
did not have any investments deposited in Icelandic Banks, so has not been required to make any
impairments in respect of Financial Instruments.

•

The decline in the housing market resulted in lower income for the Council than the original 2008/09
budget for some income streams. During 2008/09 there was a reduction in income from land charges
and planning services compared to the previous year.

•

Bad debt provisions have been recalculated, with consideration given to the rates of provision provided
for.
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4

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT
The Housing Revenue Account recorded a deficit of £2,627 for the year compared to a revised budget
surplus of £148,300, a difference of £150,927.

5

GENERAL FUND REVENUE EXPENDITURE
The net expenditure on General Fund services during the year was £13,267,468 compared to the revised
budget of £13,800,500. This resulted in an increase in reserves for the year of £453,603 which was
£596,489 more than budgeted. £430,900 of this has been carried forward to be spent on works delayed
from 2008/09 to 2009/10. The table below shows a comparison between the revised budget and actual net
expenditure and sources of finance.
Notes

Net expenditure
Net expenditure on services
Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Interest payable and similar charges
Interest and investment income
Pensions interest cost and expected return on
pension assets
Revenue contributions to capital expenditure
Reversal of capital related charges
Minimum revenue provision
Voluntary revenue provision for capital financing
Movement on Pensions Reserve
Parish Council precept
Total net expenditure

1

1

Revised
Budget
£

Actual
£

13,714,600
70,000
565,300
(609,200)

13,233,167
480,103
563,144
(619,358)

(481,433)
410,103
(2,156)
(10,158)

1,076,000
16,200
(974,400)
116,600
122,900
(563,500)
266,000

1,074,000
16,211
(1,429,003)
116,517
122,898
(556,215)
266,004

(2,000)
11
(454,603)
(83)
(2)
7,285
4

13,800,500

13,267,468

(533,032)

7,003,000
64,555
1,058,533
5,531,526

7,003,000
64,555
1,121,990
5,531,526

0
0
63,457
0

13,657,614

13,721,071

63,457

142,886

(453,603)

(596,489)

Difference
£

Sources of finance
Demand on the Collection Fund
Surplus transferred from the Collection Fund
General Government Grants
Non-domestic Rates redistribution
Total sources of finance
Transfer (to)/from General Fund reserves
Explanatory Notes
Note 1

The loss on disposal of fixed assets takes into account the value of the asset,
the cost of disposal and the proceeds of disposal. This charge is taken out in the
reversal of capital related charges. Further information is shown in note 14 to the
Core Financial Statements.
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6

USE OF MONEY FOR SERVICES
The following pie charts show in broad terms where the Council’s money came from and what the money
was spent on.
Where the money came from

What the money was spent on

Explanatory Notes
Cultural services includes recreation, sport and the arts, community centres, allotments and open spaces.
Planning services includes building and development control and planning policy.
Housing services includes the cost of maintaining and administering the Council’s housing stock and
statutory homelessness functions.
Environmental services includes refuse collection, public conveniences, welfare transport, street cleaning
and cemeteries.

Page 

EXPLANATORY FOREWORD
Non-distributed costs are overheads which are not allocated to a specific service.
Corporate and democratic core includes all Members’ activities and those corporate activities and costs
which provide the infrastructure that allows services to be provided.
Highways, roads and transport services includes car parks and concessionary fares.
Central services to the public includes the cost of elections, emergency planning, land charges and
donations.
Local tax collection and Housing Benefits includes the cost of collecting and administering all Housing
Benefits, Council Tax and National Non-domestic Rates and the cost of all Housing and Council Tax Benefit
payments made to claimants.
Other includes interest payable and Town Council precept.
7

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND BORROWING FACILITIES
The Council has a capital programme, which is allocated across both General Fund and Housing Revenue
Account activities. The capital expenditure for the year was £2,917,175 compared to the approved budget of
£4,537,300. Budgeted expenditure of £1,350,000 to purchase land did not take place during the year.
The main items of expenditure were council house improvements, playground equipment, vehicle
replacement programme and Canvey Island seafront improvements. The Council sold 3 council houses
during the year. Note 14 to the core financial statements contains full details of the Council’s capital
expenditure and shows how it was financed. Note 20 to the core financial statements contains details of the
Council’s current borrowing. An overdraft facility is in place with the Co-operative Bank plc to cover shortterm requirements.

8

SUSTAINABILITY STRATEGY
The Council is committed to making the Borough a sustainable community for those who live and work
here and takes a leading role to ensure that the community of Castle Point meets the challenge of climate
change. It will work with other organisations locally, nationally and internationally to ensure that the effects
of climate change are minimised. This includes actions to reduce the carbon footprint of the Borough
with reduced emissions of greenhouse gasses such as carbon dioxide as well as to develop and promote
improved waste recycling services. The Council’s strategy for the commissioning and procurement of
goods and services supports it’s commitment following where possible, sustainable procurement practice by
choosing products, contractors and suppliers that have high environmental performance.

9

DIVERSITY STRATEGY
The Council is committed to providing services that are accessible to all and that meet the needs of our
community as a whole. The Council’s Corporate Diversity Strategy outlines the equality objectives which
collectively develop equality in a wide range of equality areas including gender, disability, age, race,
religion and sexual orientation. Having achieved Level 4 of the Equality Standard for Local Government,
we are committed to continue to promote equality with our Fairness agenda and our target to achieve the
‘excellence standard’ against the new Equality Framework.
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10

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS
The Council and its partners are serving the community well and have a comprehensive understanding
of the needs of the Borough. The Council’s priorities are based in these needs and result in real
outcomes that are changing people’s lives. Citizens are more able to influence local decision making with
enhanced neighbourhood engagement and community involvement. The Borough is more sustainable
with a clean and pleasant environment, reduced CO2 emissions and increased waste recycling by 2010.
Transformational regeneration is being implemented with real improvements to the commercial fabric of the
Borough and greater opportunities for work, rest and play through regenerated facilities. Social housing is
being improved. There is a focus on excellent customer services for all, with customer services provided
by the Council nationally recognised and awarded for excellence by 2010. The Council is careful to ensure
value for money is effectively obtained and consults with its citizens on the best way of providing services.
The Borough is safe with targeted improvements to community safety in crime hotspot areas. The Council
leads the community and is set to exploit all the exciting opportunities for the future including promoting the
development of a world class mountain biking facility for the 2012 Olympics. These activities are reflected in
the Council’s Route Map to Excellence.
The Council has a successful working partnership with the Homes & Communities Agency, the East of
England Development Agency, Essex County Council, NHS South East Essex and other bodies. This
partnership work has resulted in the award of significant grants for the next two years to assist with various
regeneration schemes across the Borough These schemes include proposals for the regeneration of
Canvey and Hadleigh town centres, the provision of new schools on Canvey as part of The Building
Schools for the Future Programme, provision of improved employment opportunities and skills training
in the Borough, improved health care facilities for residents of Castle Point and a range of environmental
schemes such as the regeneration of Canvey seafront and the development of West Canvey Marshes as a
nature conservation zone. The proposals will have significant cost implications, and these will be carefully
examined and work will be undertaken to ensure the affordability of any future planned regeneration work.
The Council has been successful in obtaining grant funding from external agencies to progress the vision
and will continue to explore all available funding sources.
During 2008/09 the Council agreed a leisure strategy that encompassed indoor and outdoor leisure
provision. During 2009/10 the leisure service will undergo an operational review in order to try to improve
the choice, quality and value for money provided to our residents.
During 2008/09, the Housing Service underwent a comprehensive review to ensure that it was fit for
purpose. The objectives of the review were to make the management structure more effective and finely
tuned to the needs of our tenants, particularly in relation to landlord management, and also to improve the
value for money achieved by the Housing Maintenance Service. A new organisational structure is now in
place. Procedures have also been put in place to ensure that future maintenance programmes are subject
to rigorous procurement exercises. During 2009/10 the Council will be undertaking a full procurement
exercise to ensure that the planned and responsive repairs and maintenance of our housing stock delivers
the best value for money for our tenants.
From 2010/11 Local Authorities will be required to prepare their Statement of Accounts under International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) requirements, as opposed to current UK Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (UK GAAP). This will require comparative information for 2009/10, and an opening
Balance Sheet as at 1 April 2009 restated under IFRS. There are however no changes as a result of IFRS
to the accounts for 2008/09. The principal issues the Council will consider during IFRS implementation
are in relation to the accounting treatment of leases, property, plant and equipment, employee benefits,
investment properties and intangible assets and general presentation and disclosure requirements. There
may also be significant changes in the presentation of the key accounting statements.
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STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS
RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE COUNCIL
The Council is required to:
•

make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of its officers
has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this Council, that officer is the Head of
Resources, Chris Mills CPFA;

•

manage its affairs to secure the economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard its assets;

•

approve the Statement of Accounts.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE HEAD OF RESOURCES
The Head of Resources is responsible for the preparation of the Council’s Statement of Accounts in accordance
with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the
United Kingdom (‘the Code of Practice’).
In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Head of Resources has:
•

selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;

•

made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent;

•

complied with the Code of Practice.

The Head of Resources has also:
•

kept proper accounting records which were kept up to date;

•

taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

This Statement of Accounts presents fairly the financial position of the Council at 31 March 2009 and its income
and expenditure for the year then ended.

Chris Mills CPFA
Head of Resources
18 September 2009
I confirm that these Accounts were approved by the Council at the meeting held on 24 June 2009.
Signed on behalf of Castle Point Borough Council by the Chair of the meeting approving the Accounts.

Councillor Cliff Brunt (Mayor)
24 June 2009
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AUDITORS’ REPORT
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF CASTLE POINT BOROUGH COUNCIL
Opinion on the financial statements
We have audited the Authority accounting statements and related notes of Castle Point Borough Council for the
year ended 31 March 2009 under the Audit Commission Act 1998. The accounting statements comprise the
Income and Expenditure Account, the Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance, the Balance Sheet,
the Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses, the Cash Flow Statement, the Housing Revenue Account,
the Collection Fund and the related notes. These accounting statements have been prepared under the accounting
policies set out in the Statement of Accounting Policies.
This report is made solely to the members of Castle Point Borough Council in accordance with Part II of the Audit
Commission Act 1998 and for no other purpose, as set out in paragraph 49 of the Statement of Responsibilities of
Auditors and of Audited Bodies prepared by the Audit Commission.
Respective responsibilities of the Head of Resources and auditors
The Head of Resources responsibilities for preparing the financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and
regulatory requirements and the Statement of Recommended Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom 2008 are set out in the Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts.
Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements
and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).
We report to you our opinion as to whether the accounting statements present fairly, in accordance with relevant
legal and regulatory requirements and the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
2008 the financial position of the Authority and its income and expenditure for the year.
We review whether the governance statement reflects compliance with ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local
Government: A Framework’ published by CIPFA/SOLACE in June 2007. We report if it does not comply with proper
practices specified by CIPFA/SOLACE or if the Statement is misleading or inconsistent with other information we
are aware of from our audit of the financial statements. We are not required to consider, nor have we considered,
whether the governance statement covers all risks and controls. Neither are we required to form an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Authority’s corporate governance procedures or its risk and control procedures.
We read other information published with the accounting statements, and consider whether it is consistent with
the audited accounting statements. This other information comprises the Explanatory Foreword. We consider the
implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the
accounting statements. Our responsibilities do not extend to any other information.
Basis of audit opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Audit Commission Act 1998, the Code of Audit Practice issued by
the Audit Commission and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices
Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in
the accounting statements and related notes. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and
judgments made by the Authority in the preparation of the accounting statements and related notes, and of whether
the accounting policies are appropriate to the Authority’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately
disclosed.
We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the accounting
statements and related notes are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity
or error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the
accounting statements and related notes.
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Opinion
In our opinion the financial statements present fairly, in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements
and the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2008, the financial position of the
Authority as at 31 March 2009 and its income and expenditure for the year then ended.

David Eagles
Partner, on behalf of PKF (UK) LLP
Ipswich, UK
18 September 2009
Conclusion on arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources
Authority’s Responsibilities
The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and governance and regularly to review the
adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements.
Auditor’s Responsibilities
We are required by the Audit Commission Act 1998 to be satisfied that proper arrangements have been made by
the Authority for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. The Code of Audit Practice
issued by the Audit Commission requires us to report to you our conclusion in relation to proper arrangements,
having regard to relevant criteria specified by the Audit Commission for principal local authorities. We report
if significant matters have come to our attention which prevent us from concluding that the Authority has made
such proper arrangements. We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the
Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are operating
effectively.
Conclusion
We have undertaken our audit in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice and having regard to the criteria for
principal local authorities specified by the Audit Commission and published in May 2008 and updated in February
2009, and the supporting guidance, we are satisfied that, in all significant respects, Castle Point Borough Council
made proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year
ending 31 March 2009.
Certificate
We certify that we have completed the audit of the accounts in accordance with the requirements of the Audit
Commission Act 1998 and the Code of Audit Practice issued by the Audit Commission.

David Eagles
Partner, on behalf of PKF (UK) LLP
Ipswich, UK
18 September 2009

Page 

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1

GENERAL
The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council’s transactions for the 2008/09 financial year and its
position at the year end of 31 March 2009. It has been prepared in accordance with The Code of Practice
on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2008: A Statement of Recommended Practice, as
issued by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA).
The accounting convention that has been adopted in the financial statements is historical cost modified by
the revaluation of certain categories of tangible assets.

2

ACCRUALS OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE
The accruals concept has been adopted for both income and expenditure on all revenue and capital
transactions. This means that revenue (income) and expenditure (costs) are recognised as they are earned
or incurred, not as money is received and paid.

3

VALUE ADDED TAX
Income and expenditure excludes any amounts related to VAT, as all VAT collected is payable to HM
Revenue and Customs and all VAT paid is recoverable from it.

4

OVERHEADS AND SUPPORT SERVICES
In accordance with the Best Value Accounting Code of Practice the full cost of overheads and support
services are shared between users in proportion to the benefits received from the supply or service, with
the exception of Corporate and Democratic Core and Non-Distributed costs. These two categories are
accounted for as separate headings in the Income and Expenditure Account, as part of the Net Cost of
Services.

5

STOCKS AND WORK-IN-PROGRESS
Stocks and work-in-progress are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost or net realisable value.

6

PROVISION FOR BAD AND DOUBTFUL DEBTS
Provision has been made in the accounts for potential bad and doubtful debts. Known uncollectable debts
have been written off.

7

RETIREMENT BENEFITS
Employees of the Council are members of the Local Government Pension Scheme which is accounted
for as a defined benefits scheme. The operating costs of providing retirement benefits to employees
are recognised in the accounting periods in which the benefits are earned by the employees. The
related finance costs and any other changes in the value of the assets and liabilities are recognised in
the accounting periods in which they arise. The policies reflect the Council’s commitment to increase
contributions to make up any shortfall in attributable net assets in the pension fund.
In assessing liabilities for retirement benefits at 31 March 2008 for the 2007/08 Statement of Accounts,
the actuary assumed a discount rate of 2.5% real (6.1% actual), a rate based on the current rate of return
on a high-quality corporate bond of equivalent currency and term to scheme liabilities is to be used. For
the 2008/09 Statement of Accounts, the actuary has advised that a rate of 3.8% real (7.1% actual) is
appropriate. Application of this rate has resulted in a decrease in liabilities measured at today’s prices
of £12,463,000, adjusted for by an increase in actuarial losses for the year in the Statement of Total
Recognised Gains and Losses.
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STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Change of Accounting Policy
Under the 2008 SORP the Council has adopted the amendment to Financial Reporting Standard 17
(FRS17), Retirement benefits. As a result, quoted securities held as assets in the ECC Pension Fund are
now valued at bid price rather than mid-market value. The effect of this change is that the value of scheme
assets at 31 March 2008 has been restated from £43,697,000 to £43,653,000, a decrease of £44,000,
resulting in an £44,000 increase of the pension fund deficit of £21,242,000 (an increase of £46,000 at 31
March 2007). Current and prior year surplus of the Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance
has been unaffected by this change.
8

OPERATING LEASES
The Council uses operating leases and contract hire to obtain the use of buildings, vehicles and equipment.
Annual rentals are charged directly to the Income and Expenditure Account evenly throughout the period of
the lease.
Assets leased to third parties are recorded as fixed assets and depreciated where appropriate. Rental
income received is credited directly to the Income and Expenditure Account throughout the period of
the lease. The Council has set a de-minimis limit of £2,000 below which income received in relation to
operating leases is not included within the leasing note, on the grounds of immateriality.

9

INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
The Council does not hold any intangible fixed assets.

10

FIXED ASSETS
Recognition
All expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of fixed assets has been capitalised on an
accruals basis. The Council operates a de minimis limit of £10,000 below which items will be charged to
revenue rather than to capital on the grounds of immateriality.
Measurement and Impairment
Fixed assets are initially measured at cost, comprising all expenditure that is directly attributable to bringing
the asset into working condition for its intended use. Fixed assets are valued on the basis recommended by
CIPFA and in accordance with the Statement of Asset Valuation Principles and Guidance Notes, issued by
the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS). Fixed assets (excluding land) are classified as follows:
Estimated Useful Life
(Years)

Type of Asset

Valuation Method

Council dwellings

Existing use value for social housing
Existing use value

}
}

35 to 60

Other land & buildings

Existing use value
Depreciated replacement cost

}
}

20 to 60

Infrastructure assets

Depreciated historical cost

25 to 60

Community assets

Depreciated historical cost

60

Vehicles, plant, furniture
and equipment

Depreciated historical cost

3 to 10

Non-operational assets

Market value

2 to 60
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STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Revaluations of fixed assets (excluding council houses) are carried out on a rolling five-year programme.
Council houses have been revalued as at 1 April 2008 using the Guidance on Stock Valuation for Resource
Accounting issued by the Office of the Deputy Prime Minister. Section 3.4.4 and 3.4.5 of the guidance
allows valuers the ability to vary the rate at which the discount for vacant possession adjustment is made.
The valuer has adopted the discount rate applying to the South East region as it was deemed that the
property market in Castle Point corresponded and conformed with the property market in Kent and the
South East region rather than the more rural aspect of the Eastern region.
Material changes to asset valuations are adjusted in the accounts in the year that they occur. Increases in
valuations are credited to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains. Exceptionally, gains might
be credited to the Income and Expenditure Account where they arise from the reversal of an impairment loss
previously charged to the Income and Expenditure Account.
The Revaluation Reserve contains gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the date of formal
implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account.
Assets are reviewed annually to assess if there is a need for an impairment adjustment. Where an
impairment is attributable to the clear consumption of economic benefits the loss is charged to the relevant
service revenue account. Otherwise it is written off against any revaluation gains attributable to the relevant
asset in the Revaluation Reserve, with any excess being charged to the relevant service revenue account.
Where an impairment loss is charged to the Income and Expenditure Account but there were accumulated
revaluation gains in the Revaluation Reserve for the asset, an amount up to the value of the loss is
transferred from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.
Charges to the Income and Expenditure Account for impairment are appropriated from the Statement of
Movement on the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account.
Disposals
When an asset is disposed of the value of the asset in the Balance Sheet after revaluation, where
appropriate, is written off to the Income and Expenditure Account as part of the gain or loss on disposal.
Receipts from disposals are credited to the Income and Expenditure Account as part of the gain or loss on
disposal (netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal). Any revaluation gains in
the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account.
The written off value of disposals is not a charge against Council Tax, as the cost of fixed assets is fully
provided for under separate arrangements for capital accounting. The amount written off (excluding capital
receipts less than £10,000 and disposal costs which are treated as transactions within the Income and
Expenditure Account) is appropriated from the Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance to the
Capital Adjustment Account.
Depreciation
Financial Reporting Standard 15 requires that where depreciation is material it should be provided on all
assets other than non-operational assets which constitute investment properties. However, investment
properties that are held with an unexpired lease of 20 years or less are depreciated over the remaining
period of the lease.
All operational buildings and vehicles are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the period of their useful
economic life.
Charges for depreciation are appropriated from the Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance to
the Capital Adjustment Account.
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STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current value
depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable based on their
historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.
11

REVENUE EXPENDITURE FUNDED FROM CAPITAL UNDER STATUTE
This relates to expenditure incurred during the year that is treated as capital for capital control purposes
but does not result in the creation of fixed assets (eg renovation, home repair assistance, disabled facilities
grants and warm front top up grants awarded to improve or convert private sector dwellings). This type of
expenditure was formally known as deferred charges. The expenditure along with any appropriate grants
has been allocated to the relevant service revenue account in the Income and Expenditure Account in the
year. A transfer to the Capital Adjustment Account reverses out the amount charged in the Statement of
Movement on the General Fund Balance so that there is no impact on the level of Council Tax.
Other capital expenditure for which the Council will not directly control the economic benefits has been
incurred on Canvey Heights Country Park and the sea wall as part of a Canvey seafront regeneration
project. The full cost of the expenditure of £88,876 has been received in grants. The income and
expenditure has been allocated to the Income and Expenditure Account in the year.
Change of Accounting Policy
Deferred charges were previously included in the capital activities section of the Cash Flow Statement.
As Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute is included in the Income and Expenditure
Account, it is now included in the Revenue Activities section of the Cash Flow Statement, along with any
grants credited to the Income and Expenditure Account. The Cash Flow Statement for the previous year
has been restated.

12

CAPITAL RECEIPTS
Under the 1985 Housing Act, Council tenants have the right to purchase their dwellings from the Council.
The proceeds of these sales and other asset disposals are known as capital receipts.
Amounts in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts (receipts of £10,000 or less are accounted
for within the Income and Expenditure Account). Legislation prescribes the ways in which councils may use
these receipts. In 2008/2009 these were:
Paid to the
Government

Usable
Proportion

%

%

Receipts from “right to buy” sales

75

25

Receipts from the sale of other housing assets

50

50

Other receipts

0

100

The Council has taken advantage of an exemption to the regulations requiring local authorities to pay over to
the Government 50% of all capital receipts received from the disposal of housing land, by designating its use
for the delivery of affordable housing or regeneration projects. The usable sums are required to be credited
to the Usable Capital Receipts Reserve on an accruals basis and are immediately available to finance new
capital expenditure. Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve from the Statement of Movement on the
General Fund Balance.
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STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
13

CHARGES TO REVENUE FOR FIXED ASSETS
Service revenue accounts and support services are charged with depreciation, amortisation of intangible
fixed assets and impairment losses attributable to the clear consumption of economic benefits, used by the
service and other losses where there are no accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which
they can be written off.
The Council is not required to raise Council Tax to cover depreciation, impairment losses or amortisation.
However, it is required to make an annual provision from revenue to contribute towards the reduction of its
overall borrowing requirement. Depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations are therefore replaced by
the revenue provision in the Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting
transaction within the Capital Adjustment Account for the difference between the two.

14

MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION (MRP)
The Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2008 came
into force on 31 March 2008. The Regulations require Council to approve an Annual Statement of Minimum
Revenue Provision, which is the amount set aside from revenue for the repayment of debt principal relating
to the General Fund. It is also permitted to undertake Additional Voluntary Provision (AVP). The new
regulations place a duty on Local Authorities to make an amount of MRP which it considers to be “prudent”
each year.
With effect from 2008/09 the Council chose to calculate MRP using the Asset Life Method for new
borrowing under the Prudential system for which no Government support is being given. This option makes
provision over the estimated life of the asset for which the borrowing is undertaken.
The MRP charge of £116,517 for 2008/09 is included in the Statement of Movement on the General Fund
Balance. The charge for the year of £216,599 was reduced by £100,042 relating to the write back of an over
provision that had occurred in previous years.

15

INCOME THAT IS DEFINED BY CAPITAL AS A CAPITAL RECEIPT BUT DOES NOT ARISE FROM THE
DISPOSAL OF AN INTEREST IN A FIXED ASSET
Amounts to be treated as capital receipts are defined by statute and usually arise from the disposal of
an interest in a fixed asset. Some statutorily defined capital receipts do not arise from the disposal of an
interest in a fixed asset and represent income under the general provisions of the SORP (e.g. the repayment
of a grant awarded by the Council to acquire a fixed asset by the recipient). The income received is credited
to the Income and Expenditure Account. A transfer to the Capital Receipts Reserve reverses out the
income in the Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance so that there is no impact on the level
of Council Tax.

16

GOVERNMENT GRANTS
All government grants and subsidies have been credited to the appropriate revenue and capital accounts.
Grants to cover general expenditure (e.g. Revenue Support Grant and Area Based Grant) are credited to the
foot of the Income and Expenditure Account after Net Operating Expenditure.
Government grants for Capital purposes have been credited to a Government Grants Deferred Account.
Amounts are released from this account over the useful life of the asset to match the depreciation of the
asset to which the grant relates.
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STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
17

REPAYMENT OF DEBT AND INTEREST CHARGES
The Council makes provision for all scheduled debt repayments. The basis of these payments is dependent
on the type of loan raised. Debt outstanding on assets transferred to Essex County Council is included in
the accounts as part of the Council’s debt. The amount outstanding at 31 March 2009 from Essex County
Council was £37,552. Reimbursement of this debt is received annually.

18

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Investments and receivables are shown at fair value when recognised and carried at amortised cost.
The Council does not have any financial assets that require an effective interest rate calculation to be
undertaken. The amount credited to the Income and Expenditure Account for interest receivable is based
on the principal outstanding multiplied by the interest rate for the instrument. The amount for loans shown
on the Balance Sheet is the carrying amount, which is outstanding principal and accrued interest.

19

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value and carried at their amortised cost. The Council does
not have any financial liabilities that require an effective interest rate calculation to be undertaken. The
amount charged to the Income and Expenditure Account for interest payable is based on the principal
outstanding multiplied by the rate of interest for the instrument. The amount for borrowing shown on the
Balance Sheet is the carrying amount, which is outstanding principal repayable and accrued interest.
Gains and losses on the repurchase or early settlement of borrowing are credited and debited to Net
Operating Expenditure in the Income and Expenditure Account in the year of repurchase/settlement.
Premiums and discounts are charged to the Income and Expenditure Account in the year in which they
occur.

20

RESERVES AND PROVISIONS
Powers are given under the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 for local authorities to keep reserves
and provisions for certain purposes. The Council’s reserves are shown separately in the Balance Sheet and
reviewed annually to ensure adequacy. Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting process for
tangible fixed assets and retirement benefits and they do not represent useable resources for the Council,
these reserves are explained under the relevant policies.
The Council held no provisions in either the current or previous year.

21

REQUIREMENT TO PREPARE GROUP ACCOUNTS
The Council is required to prepare group accounts alongside its own financial statements where it has
material interests in subsidiaries, associates and/or joint ventures. The Council has undergone a process
of identifying its involvement with companies, voluntary organisations and other public bodies to establish
whether it has interests relevant to group accounts and has established that it does not have a requirement
to produce group accounts for 2008/09.
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INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2009
This account summarises the resources that have been generated and consumed in providing services and
managing the Council during the year. It includes all day-to-day expenses and related income on an accruals
basis as well as transactions measuring the value of fixed assets actually consumed and the real projected value of
retirement benefits earned by employees in the year.
NET
EXPEND

GROSS
EXPEND

GROSS
INCOME

NET
EXPEND

2007/08

2008/09

2008/09

2008/09

£

£

£

£

Central services to the public

17,049,191

16,022,674

1,026,517

7,014,874

Cultural, environmental and planning services

13,932,347

6,694,855

7,237,492

1,139,347

Highways, roads and transport services

4,170,780

3,046,200

1,124,580

Notes

Restated

SERVICE EXPENDITURE
871,293

232,021

Housing Revenue Account

12,843,783

6,342,024

6,501,759

971,846

Other housing services

19,634,879

18,530,540

1,104,339

2,600,200

61,697

2,538,503

390,044

54,914

335,130

1

0

0

0

2

0

0

0

70,621,224

50,752,904

19,868,320

2,437,214
501,226

Corporate and democratic core
Non-distributed costs
EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
Contribution from Essex County Council

(54,000)

towards highways residual costs
General Fund housing stock transfer pre-ballot

134,353
13,248,174

costs
NET COST OF SERVICES

316,179

Loss on disposal of fixed assets

363,522

267,286

Town council precept

266,004

470,796

Interest payable and similar charges

446,348

905,569

Contribution of Housing Pooled Capital
Receipts

(736,642)

Interest and investment income

179,000
14,650,362

10

225,144
(619,406)

Pensions interest cost and expected return on pensions assets
NET OPERATING EXPENDITURE

1,074,000
21,623,932

SOURCES OF FINANCE
6,723,286
25,000
930,902
5,195,041
12,874,229
(1,776,133)

Demand on the Collection Fund

7,003,000

Surplus transferred from the Collection Fund

64,555

General Government Grants

1,121,990

Non-domestic Rates redistribution

5,531,526

TOTAL

13,721,071

DEFICIT FOR THE YEAR

12
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(7,902,861)

STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT ON
THE GENERAL FUND BALANCE
The Income and Expenditure Account shows the Council’s actual financial performance for the year, measured in
terms of the resources consumed and generated over the last twelve months. However the Council is required to
raise Council Tax on a different accounting basis, the main differences being:
•

Capital investment is accounted for as it is financed, rather than when the fixed assets are consumed.

•

The payment of a share of housing capital receipts to the Government results in a reduction in the Income
and Expenditure Account, but is met from the capital receipts balance rather than Council Tax.

•

Retirement benefits are charged as amounts become payable to pension funds and pensioners, rather than
as future benefits are earned.

The General Fund balance shows whether the Council has over or under spent against the Council Tax
that it raised for the year, taking into account the use of reserves built up in the past and contributions to
reserves earmarked for future expenditure.
The statement below summarises the differences between the outturn on the Income and Expenditure
Account and the General Fund Balance.
2007/08
Restated
£
1,776,133

(1,800,319)
(24,186)

NOTES
Deficit for the year on the Income and Expenditure
Account
Net additional amount required by statute and non-statutory
proper practices to be debited or credited to the General
Fund Balance for the year
Increase in General Fund Balance for the year

£

2008/09

£

7,902,861

13

(8,356,464)
(453,603)

(3,588,725)

General Fund Balance brought forward

(3,612,911)

(3,612,911)

General Fund Balance carried forward

(4,066,514)
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STATEMENT OF TOTAL RECOGNISED
GAINS AND LOSSES (STRGL)
This statement brings together all the gains and losses of the Council for the year and shows the aggregate
increase in its net worth. In addition to the deficit generated on the Income and Expenditure Account, it includes
gains and losses relating to the revaluation of fixed assets, re-measurement of the net liability to cover the cost of
retirement benefits and the movement in the Collection Fund balance.
For completeness, other movements in reserves and balances are shown after the total recognised gains for the
year to arrive at the movement in reserves and balances for the year.
2007/08
Restated
£

2008/09
£

1,776,133
(11,287,921)
8,163,000
(44,067)
0
(1,392,855)

Deficit for the year on the Income and Expenditure Account

7,902,861

(Surplus)/deficit arising on revaluation of fixed assets

6,105,074

Actuarial (gains)/losses on pension fund assets and liabilities

(328,000)

Movement in Collection Fund balance
Write back of revenue provision previously held on the Balance Sheet
to the Statement of Movement on General Fund Balance
Total recognised gains for the year

(1,669)
(100,042)
13,578,224

Movement in reserves and balances that do not result in a gain or
loss for the year
826,634
(800,000)
(1,366,221)

Deferred Purchase Scheme expenditure

0

Principal repayment of Deferred Purchase Scheme

0

Movement in reserves and balances for the year
Adjustments relating to restatement for pension fund changes

(3,000)
5,000
(1,364,221)

Deficit for the year on the Income and Expenditure Account
Actuarial (gains)/losses on pension fund assets and liabilities
Published Balance as shown in 2007/08
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13,578,224

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 MARCH 2009
31 March 2008
Restated
£

Notes

31 March 2009
£

£

FIXED ASSETS
106,391,235
29,184,834
900,542
150,923
373,292
2,333,866

Council dwellings
Other land and buildings
Vehicles, plant and equipment
Infrastructure assets
Community assets
Non-operational assets

139,334,692
114,601

TOTAL FIXED ASSETS
Long-term debtors

139,449,293

TOTAL LONG-TERM ASSETS

93,297,574
28,700,787
1,316,668
334,980
374,504
2,056,591
14
15 & 20

126,081,104
117,674
126,198,778

CURRENT ASSETS
14,534
3,437,158
9,428,922
101,523

Stocks and work in progress
Debtors
Investments
Cash and bank

16
15 & 20
20

5,781
4,078,508
8,458,757
11,380
12,554,426

12,982,137
CURRENT LIABILITIES
(6,514,848)
(143,956)
0

Creditors
Borrowing repayable within 12 months
Bank overdraft

17 & 20
20

(5,168,364)
(143,496)
(728,794)

(6,658,804)
145,772,626

(6,040,654)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

132,712,550

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
(7,829,112)
(292,642)
(524,321)
(143,609)
(21,242,000)

Borrowing repayable over periods of more than
12 months
Government grants deferred
Other grants deferred
Collection Fund
Liability related to defined benefit pension scheme

20

19

(7,825,112)
(141,591)
(1,016,602)
(128,527)
(21,438,000)

(30,031,684)
115,740,942

(30,549,832)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS LIABILITIES

102,162,718

BALANCES AND RESERVES
3,612,911
498,600
89,913
(21,242,000)
9,848,041
121,444,600
1,434,500
12,792
41,585

General Fund
Housing Revenue Account
Collection Fund
Pensions Reserve
Revaluation Reserve
Capital Adjustment Account
Usable capital receipts
Deferred credits
Major Repairs Reserve

115,740,942

NET WORTH

24

19

4,066,514
495,973
91,583
(21,438,000)
3,533,413
113,966,792
1,434,500
11,943
0
102,162,718
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2009
2007/08
Restated
£
10,671,318
37,848,280
11,195,029
11,095,400
1,804,155
757,192
15,581,956

Notes

2008/09
£

REVENUE ACTIVITIES
Cash Outflows
Cash paid to and on behalf of employees
Precepts paid
National Non-domestic Rate payments to national pool
Housing Benefit paid out
Negative Housing Subsidy
Payments to the Capital Receipts Pool
Other operating cash payments

£

11,298,349
39,886,240
12,008,363
11,985,045
2,005,118
629,186
16,173,037

88,953,330
(1,845,387)
(39,027,857)
(906)
(11,285,773)
(5,195,041)
(871,835)
(20,896,192)
(1,791,378)
(3,745,150)
(5,153,550)

93,985,338
Cash Inflows
Rents (after rebates)
Council Tax receipts
Adjustment to previous years’ Community Charge
Non-domestic Rate receipts
Receipts from the National Non-domestic Rate pool
Revenue Support Grant
Housing Benefit Subsidy
Other Government grants
Cash received for goods and services
Other operating cash receipts

31
31
31

(707,114)
(40,642,910)
0
(12,396,265)
(5,531,526)
(770,033)
(22,836,522)
(1,724,376)
(3,786,220)
(5,502,927)

(89,813,069)
(859,739)

(93,897,893)
NET CASHFLOW FROM REVENUE ACTIVITIES

26

87,445

RETURNS ON INVESTMENTS AND SERVICING OF FINANCE
466,791

Cash Outflows
Interest paid

446,474

(780,470)

Cash Inflows
Interest received

(613,825)

1,607,930
(2,023,633)
(127,803)
(29,357)

CAPITAL ACTIVITIES
Cash Outflows
Purchase of fixed assets

2,911,369

Cash Inflows
Sale of fixed assets
Capital grants received
Other capital cash receipts

31

(299,343)
(59,173)
(686,547)

(2,180,793)
(1,746,281)
1,800,000
800,333

(1,045,063)
NET CASHFLOW BEFORE FINANCING
MANAGEMENT OF LIQUID RESOURCES
Net increase/(decrease) in short-term deposits
FINANCING
Cash Outflows
Repayments of amounts borrowed
DECREASE IN CASH

(1,650,000)

29

4,333

27 & 28
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1,786,400

29

29

2,600,333
854,052

27 & 28

(1,645,667)
140,733

NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The following notes to the accounts are intended to aid the interpretation of the preceding financial statements and
for ease of reference are listed below:
Note

Description of note

Page

1

Exceptional item (contribution from Essex County Council towards highways
residual costs)

22

2

Exceptional item (Housing stock transfer costs)

22

3

Building control charging account

22

4

Audit costs

23

5

Discretionary expenditure

23

6

Related party transactions

23

7

Officers’ emoluments

24

8

Members’ allowances

24

9

Publicity expenditure

25

10

Housing capital receipts paid to Government pool

25

11

Government Grant

25

12

Income and Expenditure Deficit and Statement of Movement on the General
Fund Balance

25

13

A breakdown of the amounts additional to the surplus or deficit on the Income
and Expenditure Account that are required to be credited or debited to the
General Fund for the year

26

14

Fixed assets

27

15

Debtors

30

16

Stocks and work in progress

31

17

Creditors

31

18

Leases

31

19

Retirement benefits and net pension liability

32

20

Financial instruments

36

21

Contingent liabilities

42

22

Contingent assets

43

23

Analysis of net assets employed

43

24

Reserves

43

25

Events after the balance sheet date

46

26

Reconciliation of Income and Expenditure Account deficit with net cash flow

46

27

Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt

47

28

Analysis of changes in net debt

47

29

Analysis of the changes in the management of liquid resources and financing

47

30

Liquid resources

48

31

Analysis of Government grants received on a cash basis

48
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NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1

EXCEPTIONAL ITEM (CONTRIBUTION FROM ESSEX COUNTY COUNCIL TOWARDS HIGHWAYS
RESIDUAL COSTS)
The Council acted as an agent for Essex County Council for maintaining highways in the Borough until
the contract terminated on 31 March 2005. The Council received income from Essex County Council to
compensate in part for the residual costs that still remain after the service transferred back to Essex County
Council. 2007/08 was the final year for receipt of this income.

2

EXCEPTIONAL ITEM (GENERAL FUND HOUSING STOCK TRANSFER PRE-BALLOT COSTS)
The Council’s proposal to transfer its housing stock to a Registered Social Landlord, Swallow Housing
Association (Swan Housing Group) was put to tenants in a ballot organised by Electoral Reform Services
between 18 February and 17 March 2008. The result showed that 66.4% of tenants who took part
were in favour of staying with the Council while 33.6% voted in favour of transferring the ownership and
management of their properties to Swallow Housing Association. The costs associated with the proposed
transfer up to the point of ballot were incurred by the General Fund and Housing Revenue Account. The
amount shown represents the cost to the General Fund net of a contribution of £120,000 from Swan
Housing Group towards these costs. The costs relating to the Housing Revenue Account portion were
charged to the Housing Revenue Account in the year in which they were incurred.

3

BUILDING CONTROL CHARGING ACCOUNT
The statement below shows the total cost of providing a Building Control service, divided between
chargeable and non-chargeable activities:
Chargeable
£

Non
Chargeable
£

Expenditure
Employees
Transport related expenses
Supplies and services
Third party payments
Support services

168,049
7,631
2,545
859
69,578

97,610
4,432
1,478
0
40,414

265,659
12,063
4,023
859
109,992

Total expenditure

248,662

143,934

392,596

Income
Building regulation charges
Miscellaneous income

217,582
0

0
2,719

217,582
2,719

Total income

217,582

2,719

220,301

Deficit for the year

(31,080)

(141,215)

(172,295)

2007/08
Expenditure
Income

237,189
228,056

132,037
3,894

369,226
231,950

(9,133)

(128,143)

(137,276)

Deficit for the year

Total
£

The Council is required to carry forward any surplus or deficit made on the chargeable account over a 3
year rolling period in order to try to achieve a breakeven position. The surplus/deficit is transferred to the
Building Control Reserve provided the balance on the reserve does not go into deficit. The total over the
last three years is a deficit of £49,258. The chargeable total for the overall period since the creation of the
reserve in 2001/02 is a deficit of £41,203 which has been charged to the General Fund.
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NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
4

AUDIT COSTS
Set out below, as required by Regulations, is the total of fees incurred relating to external audit and
inspection carried out by the appointed auditor:
2007/08
£
Fees payable with regard to external audit services

5

2008/09
£

142,850

131,880

Fees payable in respect of statutory inspection

28,074

6,564

Fees payable for the certification of grant claims and returns

45,136

36,750

Other

0

1,600

Total

216,060

176,794

DISCRETIONARY EXPENDITURE
Section 137 of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended, empowers local authorities to make
contributions to certain charitable funds, not-for-profit bodies providing a public service in the United
Kingdom and mayoral appeals. The Council’s expenditure under this power was £148,861 (£145,646 in
2007/08) mainly on donations to voluntary bodies in the local area.

6

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Council is required to disclose material transactions undertaken during the year with related parties.
Related parties include Central Government, Members, Chief Officers and partner bodies.
Central Government effectively has control over the general operations of the Council. It is responsible for
providing the statutory framework within which the Council operates, provides the majority of its funding in
the form of grants and prescribes the terms of many transactions that the Council has with other parties (e.g.
Housing Benefits). Details of transactions with Central Government are set out in note 31.
During the year, transactions with related parties arose as follows:
2007/08
Receipts Payments
£
£
Castle Point Golf & Leisure Ltd
Councillor W Sharp is a director of Castle Point Golf
& Leisure Ltd. The company surrendered the golf
driving range lease to the Council in June 2001. The
agreement provided for payments to be made to the
company over a period of 15 years.

0

10,500

Essex Ford Group
Mr M Reilly was a Councillor until 3 May 2007 and is
director of Essex Motors Ltd, which trades as Essex
Ford Group. Payments made to Essex Ford Group
relate to vehicle parts.

0

17
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2008/09
Receipts Payments
£
£
0

10,500

Not applicable

NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7

OFFICERS’ EMOLUMENTS
Regulations require disclosure of the numbers of staff whose remuneration fell in each band of a scale in
multiples of £10,000, starting with £50,000.
The Regulations define remuneration as:
• all sums paid to or receivable by an employee (gross pay before the deduction of pension
contributions);
• compensation for loss of office and any other payments receivable on termination of employment;
• expense allowances chargeable to tax (such as professional subscriptions and car allowances as
declared on form P11D);
• the money value of benefits (such as cars as declared on form P11D).
The numbers of staff whose remuneration fell within the following ranges were:

8

2007/08
Restated
Number

2008/09
Number

£50,000 - £59,999
£60,000 - £69,999
£70,000 - £79,999
£80,000 - £89,999
£90,000 - £99,999
£100,000 - £109,999
£110,000 - £119,999
£120,000 - £129,999
£130,000 - £139,999
£140,000 - £149,999
£150,000 - £159,999

7
1
1
2
1
0
0
0
0
1
0

3
5
3
1
0
2
1
0
0
0
1

Total

13

16

MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES
Set out below, as required by Regulations, is the total of Members’ Allowances paid in the year:
2007/08
Restated
£

2008/09
£

Basic Allowance
Special Responsibility Allowance
Travel
Conference
Mayor’s Allowance
Deputy Mayor’s Allowance

117,249
63,460
8,279
45
6,137
2,888

151,624
125,180
8,167
45
6,137
2,888

Total

198,058

294,041

The allowances paid to Members have been restated for 2007/08 to include all sums publicised annually in
the Council newspaper - Viewpoint.
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NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
9

PUBLICITY EXPENDITURE
Set out below, as required by Regulations, are details of spending on publicity:

Staff recruitment - General Fund
- Housing Revenue Account
Council newspaper - Viewpoint
Other advertising - General Fund
Other advertising - Housing Revenue Account
Total
10

2007/08
£
27,428
0
30,295
48,937
0

2008/09
£
19,143
1,833
33,995
38,564
398

106,660

93,933

HOUSING CAPITAL RECEIPTS PAID TO GOVERNMENT POOL
The Council is required to pay a proportion (75%) of specified housing related capital receipts into a
Government pool for redistribution. The amounts paid to the pool are disclosed as expenditure after Net
Cost of Services. To ensure that no charge is made against Council Tax the deficit is reversed out in the
Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance.

11

GOVERNMENT GRANT
A breakdown by type of the grants included in Government grants are as follows:

Revenue Support Grant
Local Authority Business Growth Incentive Scheme Grant
Area Based Grant
Total

2007/08
£
871,835
59,067
0

2008/09
£
770,033
222,810
129,147

930,902

1,121,990

In 2008/09 the Area Based Grant replaced the Local Area Authority Grant. The grants are treated
differently within the Income and Expenditure Account. In 2007/08 the Local Authority Grant was shown as
income to services within Net cost of Services and in 2008/09 the Area Based Grant is shown as a General
Government Grant within Sources of Finance. There is no impact on the Income and Expenditure Account
deficit in the year as a result of this change.
12

INCOME AND EXPENDITURE DEFICIT AND STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT ON THE GENERAL FUND
BALANCE
The large deficit in 2008/09 has occurred as a result of an impairment review. The charge made to
the Income and Expenditure Account relating to the impairment review is reversed in the Statement of
Movement on General Fund Balance so there is no impact on Council Tax or Housing Rents. Further
information is shown in note 14 to the Core Financial Statements and in note 3 to the Explanatory Foreword
and note 10 to the Accounting Policies.
The Council’s objective is to maintain General Fund balances at a minimum level of £1,200,000.
The increase in the General Fund balance at the end of the year was £453,603 against a budgeted
decrease of £142,886. Of this underspend, £430,900 will be carried forward to match commitments taken
into the new financial year. In addition to the General Fund (General) Reserve, the Council budgeted for
£601,200 in earmarked reserves for specific purposes. The balance remaining at 31 March 2009 in each of
these reserves will be carried forward into the new financial year. Details of reserves are set out in note 24.
Page 25

NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
13

A BREAKDOWN OF THE AMOUNTS ADDITIONAL TO THE SURPLUS OR DEFICIT ON THE INCOME
AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT THAT ARE REQUIRED TO BE CREDITED OR DEBITED TO THE
GENERAL FUND FOR THE YEAR
2007/08
Restated
£

2008/09
£

£

Amounts included in the Income and Expenditure
Account but required by statute to be excluded when
determining the Movement on the General Fund
Balance for the year
(973,101)

(438,973)
47,826
0
(56,215)
(320,469)
(1,467,000)

Depreciation and impairment of fixed assets
Excess depreciation charged to Housing Revenue
Account services over Major Repairs Allowance element
of Housing Subsidy
Government and other grants deferred amortisation
Capital receipts arising other than from the disposal of a
fixed asset
Revenue expenditure funded from Capital Under Statute
capital resources
Net loss on sale of fixed assets
Net changes made for retirement benefits in accordance
with FRS 17

(7,067,838)

(464,360)
91,353
1,834
(82,352)
(370,549)
(2,362,000)

(3,207,932)

(10,253,912)
Amounts not included in the Income and Expenditure
Account but required to be included by statute when
determining the Movement on the General Fund
Balance for the year

225,997
0
(905,569)
1,713,000

Minimum revenue provision for capital financing
Capital expenditure charged in year to the General Fund
Balance
Transfer from Useable Capital Receipts to meet payments
to Housing Capital Receipts Pool
Employer’s contributions payable to the Pension Fund

116,517
47,804
(225,144)
1,838,000

1,033,428

1,777,177
Transfers to or from the General Fund Balance that
are required to be taken into account when
determining the Movement on the General Fund
Balance for the year

261,553
112,632

Housing Revenue Account balance
Voluntary revenue provision for capital financing

374,185
(1,800,319)

(2,627)
122,898
120,271

Net additional amount required to be credited to the
General Fund balance for the year
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FIXED ASSETS
Intangible fixed assets
The Council does not hold any intangible fixed assets.
Tangible fixed assets
The Council has re-appointed Chartered Surveyors Wilks Head and Eve to carry out a further phased
revaluation over a five-year period of the freehold and leasehold properties that comprise the Council’s
property portfolio (excluding Council houses). The fourth phase of the current revaluation took place in
April 2008, when assets were valued as at 1 April 2008. The valuations provided were in accordance with
the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom, except that not all the
properties were inspected. This was neither practicable nor considered by the valuer to be necessary for the
purpose of the valuations. External visual inspections were carried out on all of these properties, however a
detailed inspection was carried out on certain properties where necessary.
Plant and machinery that is considered to form part of the building or service installation is included in the
valuation. Properties regarded by the Council as operational were valued at existing use value or where this
could not be assessed because there was no market for the subject asset, depreciated replacement cost.
Properties regarded as non-operational have been valued at market value.
The Council also appointed Chartered Surveyors Wilks Head and Eve to carry out a desktop revaluation of
the Council’s housing assets as at 1 April 2008, the valuation took place from April 2008 to May 2008.
Housing Revenue Account properties were valued at existing use value for social housing or existing use
value using a beacon approach. This approach involves selecting individual properties for valuation as
being representative of a group of properties.
Numbers of major tangible fixed assets owned by the Council
31/3/08
Number

31/3/09
Number

Council dwellings
Council garages
Council offices
Depots and workshops
Public conveniences
Off-street car parks
Leisure centres including pools
Civic halls
Heritage Centre
Open spaces including recreation grounds
Golf course
Golf course driving range
Golf course shop
Cemeteries
Allotment sites

1,542
432
3
2
7
12
2
6
1
39
1
1
1
4
8

1,539
432
3
2
7
12
2
6
1
39
1
1
1
4
6

Total

2,061

2,056
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Impairment review
In the light of recent economic events an impairment review of the Council’s property portfolio was carried
out by Wilks Head and Eve during April 2009 providing valuations as at 31 March 2009. The valuer
considered that the general effects of the economic market now constitute so significant an effect as
to require an impairment of the assets. Impairments were found to be appropriate on assets that were
previously valued at 1 April 2008. The impairment percentages which have been applied are as follows:
%
Housing Revenue Account properties
Operational specialised properties
Operational non specialised properties
Non operational properties

15.3
3.0
2.5
5.0

Fixed assets movements in the year
Operational
Assets

Council
Dwellings
£

Other
Land and
Buildings
£

Vehicles
Plant etc
£

Infrastructure
£

Community
Assets
£

Total
Operational
£

Cost or valuation
1 April 2008

107,905,255

30,110,810

1,209,706

150,923

373,292

139,749,986

Revaluation

1,074,810

200,416

0

0

2,860

1,278,086

Additions

1,150,194

122,578

815,081

193,100

0

2,280,953

Disposals

(182,761)

0

(179,280)

0

(1,153)

(363,194)

0

(238,577)

0

(54)

(495)

(239,126)

(16,649,924)

(73,512)

0

0

0

(16,723,436)

93,297,574

30,121,715

1,845,507

343,969

374,504

125,983,269

Reclassifications
Impairment review
31 March 2009

Depreciation and Impairments
1 April 2008

(1,514,020)

(925,976)

(309,164)

0

0

(2,749,160)

Revaluation

1,482,043

16,188

0

0

0

1,498,231

Charge in year

(1,541,378)

(555,856)

(219,675)

(8,989)

0

(2,325,898)

Disposals

0

0

0

0

0

0

Reclassifications

0

17,754

0

0

0

17,754

1,573,355

26,962

0

0

0

1,600,317

0

(1,420,928)

(528,839)

(8,989)

0

(1,958,756)

106,391,235

29,184,834

900,542

150,923

373,292

137,000,826

93,297,574

28,700,787

1,316,668

334,980

374,504

124,024,513

Impairment review
31 March 2009

Balance Sheet Amount
1 April 2008
31 March 2009
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Non-operational
Assets

Investment
Properties
£

Surplus
Assets
£

Total Nonoperational
£

Total
Assets
£

Cost or valuation
1 April 2008

2,122,505

531,264

2,653,769

142,403,755

Revaluation

77,081

0

77,081

1,355,167

Additions

16,211

0

16,211

2,297,164

Disposals

0

(473,267)

(473,267)

(836,461)

Reclassifications

216,464

22,662

239,126

0

Impairment review

(125,556)

(163)

(125,719)

(16,849,155)

2,306,705

80,496

2,387,201

128,370,470

31 March 2009

Depreciation and Impairments
1 April 2008

(318,526)

(1,377)

(319,903)

(3,069,063)

Revaluation

18,770

555

19,325

1,517,556

(96,130)

(2,286)

(98,416)

(2,424,314)

0

0

0

0

(18,576)

822

(17,754)

0

86,138

0

86,138

1,686,455

(328,324)

(2,286)

(330,610)

(2,289,366)

Charge in year
Disposals
Reclassifications
Impairment review
31 March 2009

Balance Sheet Amount
1 April 2008

1,803,979

529,887

2,333,866

139,334,692

31 March 2009

1,978,381

78,210

2,056,591

126,081,104

Main items of capital expenditure

2007/08
£

2008/09
£

Council house improvements
Benfleet Council Offices deferred purchase agreement
Playground equipment
Canvey Island seafront

1,043,786
826,635
142,698
280,905

1,150,195
0
355,355
453,347

Total

2,294,024

1,958,897

Loss on disposal of assets
During a review of surplus assets it was established that a piece of land at Rushbottom Lane was no longer
an asset belonging to the Council. The asset is shown as a disposal in the year and the balance sheet
value of £458,323 has been charged to the Income and Expenditure Account. No income was received for
this asset.
Page 29

NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Financing of capital expenditure in 2008/09
The financing of capital expenditure is shown in terms of the capital financing requirement in line with the
requirements of the Prudential Code.
2007/08
2008/09
£
£
Opening Capital Financing Requirement

7,541,603

7,305,651

Capital investment
Intangible assets
Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute
Operational assets
Capital expenditure not resulting in fixed assets

7,000
368,038
2,542,417
130,177

0
444,528
2,297,164
175,483

Sources of Finance
Capital receipts
Government grants and other contributions
Sums set aside from Revenue

(288,271)
(1,856,684)
(1,138,629)

(76,881)
(2,214,894)
(387,261)

Closing Capital Financing Requirement

7,305,651

7,543,790

Increase/(Decrease) in underlying need to borrow (unsupported by
Government financial assistance)

(235,952)

238,139

Increase/(Decrease) in Capital Financing Requirement

(235,952)

238,139

Explanation of movements in year

15

DEBTORS
Amounts falling due within one year
Government departments
HM Revenue and Customs
Essex County Council
National Non-domestic Ratepayers
Council Tax payers
Housing rents
Housing benefit overpayments
Sundry debtors
Less provisions for bad and doubtful debts
Sundry debtors - General Fund
Housing rents
Housing benefit overpayments
National Non-domestic Ratepayers
Council Tax payers
Short-term debtors
Amounts falling due after one year
Mortgages
Housing Associations
Charge on property re section 189 works
Long-term debtors
Total
Page 30

31/3/08
£

31/3/09
£

381,458
129,077
126,019
78,589
1,308,554
314,875
692,144
1,819,757

484,722
211,200
381,434
208,985
1,383,201
392,118
794,187
1,754,090

4,850,473

5,609,937

(185,097)
(78,357)
(298,687)
(35,327)
(815,847)

(176,598)
(100,496)
(351,922)
(56,152)
(846,261)

3,437,158

4,078,508

12,792
14,042
87,767

11,943
14,014
91,717

114,601

117,674

3,551,759

4,196,182

NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
16

STOCKS AND WORK IN PROGRESS
The value of stock held by the Council at 31 March 2009 was £5,781 (£14,534 at 31 March 2008). Stock is
valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value. There was no work in progress at 31 March 2009. The
Council no longer operates any stores.

17

18

CREDITORS

31/3/08
£

31/3/09
£

Government departments
HM Revenue and Customs
Essex County Council
National Non-domestic Ratepayers
Council Tax payers
Housing rents
Sundry creditors

1,714,566
193,573
1,115,693
41,052
474,990
75,576
2,899,398

1,188,589
199,630
1,089,028
118,085
520,251
84,778
1,968,003

Total

6,514,848

5,168,364

LEASES
Disclosure by lessee
The amounts paid under operating leases during the year are as follows:
2007/08
£

2008/09
£

Land and buildings
Vehicles, plant and equipment

1,077,787
153,166

1,021,413
150,001

Total

1,230,953

1,171,414

The Council was committed at 31 March 2009 to making payments of £931,741 under operating leases in
2009/10 as follows:
Vehicles, Plant and
Land and Buildings
Equipment
31/3/08
31/3/09
31/3/08
31/3/09
£
£
£
£
Leases expiring within 1 year
Leases expiring between 2 and 5 years
Leases expiring after 5 years

73,388
503,580
421,341

264,636
597,968
31,481

20,715
81,021
0

0
37,656
0

Total

998,309

894,085

101,736

37,656

Disclosure by lessor
The Council received rental income to the value of £331,167 in 2008/09 (£327,236 in 2007/08) for assets
that are leased to third parties. The gross value of land and building assets held by the Council for use as
operating leases was £3,163,810. These were subject to depreciation of £105,547 to 31 March 2009 (for
2007/08 the gross value was £3,721,284 and depreciation was £137,429).
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS AND NET PENSION LIABILITY
Participation in pension schemes
As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its employees, the Council offers retirement
benefits. Although these benefits will not actually be payable until the employees retire, the Council has
a commitment to make future payments which need to be disclosed at the time that employees earn their
future entitlement.
The Council participates in the Local Government Pension Scheme administered by Essex County Council
(ECC). This is a funded scheme, meaning that the Council and employees pay contributions into a fund,
calculated at a level intended to balance the pensions’ liabilities with investment assets over the long term.
Transactions relating to retirement benefits
The Council recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the Net Cost of Services when they are earned
by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the charge the
Council is required to make against Council Tax is based on the cash payable in the year, so the real cost of
retirement benefits is reversed out of the Statement of Movement in the General Fund Balance.
The following transactions have been made in the Income and Expenditure Account and the Statement of
Movement on the General Fund Balance during the year:
2007/08
Restated
£

Income and Expenditure Account
Net Cost of Services
- current service costs
- past service costs
- curtailment costs
Net Operating Expenditure
- expected return on assets
- interest on pension liabilities

2008/09
£

941,000
347,000
0

1,104,000
0
184,000

(3,024,000)
3,203,000

(2,847,000)
3,921,000

Net charge to the Income and Expenditure Account

1,467,000

2,362,000

Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance
- reversal of net charges made for retirement benefits in
accordance with FRS 17
- employer’s contributions payable to the scheme

(1,467,000)
1,713,000

(2,362,000)
1,838,000

Net change on Statement of Movement on the General
Fund Balance

246,000

(524,000)

In addition to recognised gains and losses included in Income and Expenditure Account, actuarial gains of
£328,000 (actuarial losses of £8,163,000 in 2007/08 as restated) were included in the Statement of Total
Recognised Gains and Losses. The cumulative amount of actuarial losses recognised in the Statement of
Recognised Gains and Losses is £11,250,000.
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Assets and liabilities in relation to retirement benefits
Reconciliation of present value of the scheme liabilities:
2007/08
£

2008/09
£

1 April
Current service costs
Interest cost
Contributions by scheme participants
Actuarial gains and losses
Benefits paid
Past service costs
Curtailments

59,774,000
941,000
3,203,000
371,000
2,497,000
(2,238,000)
347,000
0

64,895,000
1,104,000
3,921,000
431,000
(12,463,000)
(2,767,000)
0
184,000

31 March

64,895,000

55,305,000

2007/08
Restated
£

2008/09

1 April
Expected rate of return
Actuarial gains and losses
Employer contributions
Contributions by scheme participants
Benefits paid

46,449,000
3,024,000
(5,666,000)
1,713,000
371,000
(2,238,000)

43,653,000
2,847,000
(12,135,000)
1,838,000
431,000
(2,767,000)

31 March

43,653,000

33,867,000

Reconciliation of present value of the scheme assets:

£

The expected return on scheme assets is determined by considering the expected returns available on the
assets underlying the current investment policy. Expected yields on fixed interest investments are based on
gross redemption yields as at the Balance Sheet date. Expected returns on equity investments reflect longterm real rates of return experiences in the respective markets.
The actual loss on scheme assets in the year was 21.4% (4.2% in 2007/08).
Scheme history
The liability shows the underlying commitment that the Council has in the long run to pay future retirement
benefits. The total liability of £21,438,000 has a substantial impact on the net worth of the Council recorded
in the Balance Sheet.
Statutory arrangements for funding the deficit mean that the financial position of the Council remains
healthy. The deficit on the pension scheme will be made good by increased contributions over the
remaining working life of employees, as assessed by the scheme actuary.
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The total contributions expected to be made to the pension scheme by the Council in the year to 31 March
2010 is £1,760,000.

Present value of
liabilities
Fair value of
assets
Scheme deficit

2004/05

2005/06

£

£

2006/07
Restated
£

2007/08
Restated
£

2008/09
£

(53,251,000)

(60,091,000)

(59,774,000)

(64,895,000)

(55,305,000)

34,528,000

43,480,000

46,449,000

43,653,000

33,867,000

(18,723,000)

(16,611,000)

(13,325,000)

(21,242,000)

(21,438,000)

The Council has elected not to restate fair value of scheme assets for 2004/05 and 2005/06 as permitted by
FRS 17 (as revised). Restatement results in a decrease of the assets of only 0.1%.
Basis for estimating assets and liabilities
Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method, an estimate of the
pensions that will be payable in future years dependant on assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels
etc. The ECC Pension Fund liabilities have been assessed by Mercer Limited, an independent firm of
actuaries. Estimates for the ECC Pension Fund are based on the latest full valuation of the scheme as at 1
April 2007.
The principal assumptions used by the actuary have been:
2007/08
%

2008/09
%

Long-term expected rate of return on assets in the scheme
- equity
- Government bonds
- other bonds
- property
- cash/liquidity

7.5
4.6
6.1
6.5
5.25

7.5
4.0
6.0
6.5
0.5

Rate of inflation
Rate of increase in salaries
Rate of increase in pensions
Rate for discounting scheme liabilities
Take-up of option to convert annual pension into retirement lump sum

3.6
5.1
3.6
6.1
50

3.3
4.8
3.3
7.1
50

Years

Years

22.0
24.8

22.0
24.9

23.1
25.9

23.1
25.9

Mortality assumptions
- Longevity at 65 for current pensioners
- Men
- Women
- Longevity at 65 for future pensioners
- Men
- Women
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Assets in the ECC Pension Fund are valued at fair value, (principally market value for investments) and
consist of the following categories, by proportion to the total assets held by the fund:
Fair value
31/3/08
Restated

£

Fair value
31/3/09
%

£

%

Equities
Government bonds
Other bonds
Property
Cash/liquidity

30,645,000
4,103,000
2,881,000
4,671,000
1,353,000

70.2
9.4
6.6
10.7
3.1

25,231,000
2,946,000
1,795,000
3,319,000
576,000

74.5
8.7
5.3
9.8
1.7

Total

43,653,000

100

33,867,000

100

History of experience for gains and losses
The actuarial gains identified as movements on the Pension Reserve in 2008/09 can be analysed into the
following categories, measured as a percentage of assets or liabilities at 31 March 2009:
2004/05
Differences
between the
expected and
actual return/
loss on assets
Differences
between
actuarial
assumptions
about liabilities
and actual
experience
Changes in
demographic
and financial
assumptions
used to
estimate
liabilities
Total gains/
(losses)

£’000

2005/06

%

£’000

%

2006/07
£’000

%

2007/08
Restated
£’000
%

2008/09
£’000

%

1,607

4.7

6,802

15.6

518

1.1

(5,666)

(13.0)

(12,135)

(35.8)

1,037

1.9

(1,122)

(1.9)

0

0

1,791

2.8

12,463

22.5

(8,008)

(15.0)

(4,353)

(7.2)

2,758

4.6

(4,288)

(6.6)

0

0

(5,364)

(1,327)

3,276

(8,163)

328

Further information can be found in Essex County Council’s Pension Fund Annual Report, which is available
on the Essex County Council website (www.essexcc.gov.co.uk) or upon request from Essex County Council,
Strategic Finance, PO Box 11, County Hall, Chelmsford, Essex, CM1 1LX, (telephone 01245 431412; e-mail
pensions.investments.web@essexcc.gov.uk).
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Financial instrument balances
The borrowings and investments disclosed in the Balance Sheet are made up of the following categories of
financial instruments:

Financial liabilities (principal amount) at
amortised cost
Accrued interest

Long Term
31/3/08
31/3/09
Restated
£
£

Current
31/3/08
31/3/09
Restated
£
£

7,829,112
0

7,825,112
0

333
143,623

0
143,496

7,829,112

7,825,112

143,956

143,496

Loans and receivables

0

0

9,428,922

8,458,757

Total investments

0

0

9,428,922

8,458,757

Total borrowings at amortised cost

Under accounting requirements the financial instrument value as shown in the balance sheet includes the
principal amount borrowed plus accrued interest. Accrued interest of £143,496 although relating to Long
Term and Current liabilities is due within one year. In previous years the accrued interest was shown as a
Long Term Liability, the Balance sheet has been restated to show accrued interest as a Current Liability.
Financial instruments gains/losses
The gains and losses recognised in the Income and Expenditure Account in relation to financial instruments
are made up as follows:
Financial Liabilities
measured at amortised cost
31/3/08
31/3/09
£
£
Interest expense

(470,796)

(446,348)

Interest payable and similar charges for the year

(470,796)

(446,348)

Financial Assets
Loans and receivables
31/3/08
31/3/09
£
£
Interest income

736,642

619,406

Interest and investment income for the year

736,642

619,406
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Fair value of Assets and Liabilities carried at Amortised Cost
Loans and receivables are carried on the Balance Sheet at amortised cost. Their fair value can be
assessed by calculating the present value of the cash flows that will take place over the remaining term of
the instruments, using the following assumptions:
•
•
•
•

For loans from the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) and other loans payable, premature repayment
rates from PWLB have been applied to provide the fair value under PWLB debt redemption
procedures.
No early repayment or impairment is recognised.
Where an instrument will mature in the next 12 months the fair value is taken to be the principal
outstanding plus accrued interest.
The fair value of trade debtors and creditors is taken to be the invoiced or billed amount.

Details of Principal amount, Carrying amount and Fair value are shown below:
Interest
rates
%
PWLB debt

3.7 - 9.375

Principal
Amount
31/3/09
£

Carrying
Amount
31/3/09
£

Fair
Value
31/3/09
£

7,825,112

7,968,608

8,518,126

Total debt

7,825,112

7,968,608

8,518,126

Creditors

4,530,028

4,530,028

4,530,028

12,355,140

12,498,636

13,048,154

Investments less than 1 year

8,380,122

8,458,757

8,458,757

Debtors

3,506,409

3,506,409

3,506,409

11,886,531

11,965,166

11,965,166

Total financial liabilities

Total investment and receivables
Interest
rates
%

PWLB debt
Mortgages

3.7 - 9.375
6.125

Principal
Amount
31/3/08
Restated
£

Carrying
Amount
31/3/08
Restated
£

Fair
Value
31/3/08
Restated
£

7,825,112
4,333

7,968,608
4,460

8,543,621
4,460

Total debt

7,829,445

7,973,068

8,548,081

Creditors

5,998,806

5,998,806

5,998,806

13,828,251

13,971,874

14,546,887

Investments less than 1 year

9,351,919

9,428,922

9,428,922

Trade debtors

3,015,790

3,015,790

3,015,790

12,367,709

12,444,712

12,444,712

Total financial liabilities

Total investment and receivables
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The Council’s portfolio of loans includes a number of fixed rate loans which were taken out when interest
rates were higher than those available for similar loans at the Balance Sheet date. Should the Council wish
to settle these loans earlier than current terms, a premium or penalty charge will be payable to the lender.
Conversely, where the Council has loans with rates lower than current market rates, earlier settlement of
these will attract a discount. The net effect of these factors has resulted in a higher fair value amount for
financial liabilities.
All investments and receivables are shown at amortised cost which is the same as the fair value as they are
all short term. From 1 April 2007 the carrying amount includes accrued interest.
Analysis of investments
The Council had surplus funds of £8,380,122 as at 31 March 2009 (£9,351,919 as at 31 March 2008).
Of this £1,730,074 was invested with the Co-operative Bank plc, £2,300,000 with the Government Debt
Management Office, £1,050,000 with Stockport Metropolitan Council, £1,000,000 with Redditch Borough
Council and £2,300,000 with Allied Irish Bank (GB) and £48 in Consolidated Loan Stock. The carrying
and fair value amounts for investments are higher than the principal amount due to the inclusion of accrued
interest.
Nature and extent of risk arising from financial instruments
Key risks
The Council’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, the key risks are:
•
•
•
•

Credit risk - the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the Council.
Liquidity risk - the possibility that the Council might not have funds available to meet its commitment
to make payments.
Re-financing risk - the possibility that the Council might be required to renew a financial instrument
on maturity at disadvantageous interest rates or terms.
Market risk - the possibility that financial loss might arise for the Council as a result of changes in
such measures as interest rate movements.

Overall procedures for managing risk
The Council’s overall risk management procedures focus on the unpredictability of financial markets and
implementing restrictions to minimise these risks. The procedures for risk management are set out through
a legal framework in the Local Government Act 2003 and the associated regulations. These require the
Council to comply with the CIPFA Prudential Code, the Treasury Management in the Public Services Code
of Practice and Investment Guidance issued through the Act. Overall these procedures require the Council
to manage risk in the following ways:
•
•

•

By formally adopting the requirement of the Code of Practice.
By approving annually in advance, prudential indicators for the following three years limiting:
o the Council’s overall borrowing;
o its maximum and minimum exposure to fixed and variable rates;
o its maximum and minimum exposure to the maturity structure of its debt;
o its maximum annual exposure to investments beyond a year.
By approving an Investment Strategy for the forthcoming year setting out its criteria for both investing
and selecting investment counterparties in compliance with the Government guidance.

These are required to be reported and approved at or before the Council’s annual Council Tax setting
meeting or before the start of the year to which they relate. These items are reported with the Annual
Treasury Management Strategy which outlines the approach to managing risk in relation to the Council’s
financial instrument exposure. Actual performance is also reported annually to Members.
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These policies are implemented by the Financial Services Unit. The Council maintains written principles
for risk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas, such as interest rate risk, credit risk
and the investment of surplus cash through Treasury Management Practices. The Treasury Management
Practices are a requirement of the Code of Practice and are regularly reviewed.
Credit risk
Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to the
Council’s customers. Deposits are not made with banks and financial institutions unless they meet the
minimum requirements of the investment criteria outlined in the procedures referred to above.
This risk is minimised through the Annual Investment Strategy, which requires that deposits are not made
with financial institutions unless they meet identified minimum credit criteria. The Annual Investment
Strategy also imposes a maximum amount and time to be invested with a financial institution located within
each category. Deposits are not made with banks and financial institutions unless they meet the minimum
requirements of the investment criteria.
The credit criteria in respect of financial assets held by the Council are detailed below:
Financial Asset Category

Criteria

Debt Management Agency
Deposit Facility

Backed by UK Government
(AAA rated)

Deposits with Local
Authorities

Maximum Investment
% of total
£
investments
No limit

No limit

High security as backed by Bank
of England

5,000,000

33

Term deposits with
institutions guaranteed by
AAA rated governments

AAA rated by all three main
ratings agencies

5,000,000

33

Money Market Funds

AAA rated by any one of the
three main ratings agencies

5,000,000

33

Term deposits with Banks
and Building Societies

Fitch ratings long term AA-,
short term F1, financial strength
A or B and support of 1 or 2

5,000,000

33

Forward deals with Banks
and Building Societies less
than one year

Fitch ratings long term AA-,
short term F1, financial strength
A or B and support of 1 or 2

5,000,000

33

Non specified investment –
Co-op Call Account

Funds are repayable on
demand. If ratings are
downgraded then a lower limit
and/or alternative accounts or
investments will be considered

4,000,000

25

Customers are assessed, taking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors, with
individual credit limits being set in accordance with internal ratings in accordance with parameters set by the
Council.
The following analysis summarises the Council’s potential maximum exposure to credit risk, based on
experience of default assessed by the ratings agencies and the Council’s experience over the last six
financial years, adjusted to reflect current market conditions:
The A-rated investments comprise time deposits which were invested when the counterparties were
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rated a minimum of AA- (in accordance with the Council’s Investment Strategy) and cash held for the
Council’s daily cash requirements with the Council’s own bank. No breaches of the Council’s counterparty
criteria occurred during the year and the Council does not expect any losses from non-performance by
any of the counterparties in relation to deposits. Whilst the current credit crisis in international markets
has raised the overall possibility of default the Council maintains strict credit criteria for investment
counterparties. The amount stated for customers excludes provision for bad debts.

Deposits with banks and
financial institutions

Amount at
31 March
2009
£

Historical
experience
of default
%

Adjustment
for market
conditions at
31 March 2009
%

Estimated
maximum
exposure to
default
£

AAA rated counterparties
A rated counterparties

4,350,000
4,030,073

0.00
0.65

0.00
0.65

0
26,195

Customers

3,058,069

8.17

8.17

249,844

11,438,142

276,039

Total debtors relating to financial instruments is £3,506,409. This comprises Government and Local
Authority debtors of £1,077,356, customers of £3,058,069 less provisions of £629,016. The Council does
not normally allow credit for its customers, however £1,670,769 of £3,058,069 shown in the above table is
past its due date. The Council actively pursues all debtors in accordance with its debt management policy
and does not write debt off until it has exhausted all options for recovery. The Council regularly reviews its
levels of debt, which includes considering the adequacy of its provision for bad debts. The overdue amount
can be analysed by age as follows:
2007/08
Restated
£
Less than three months
Three to six months
Six months to one year
More than one year

2008/09
£

361,923
155,448
274,901
534,907

326,154
188,386
740,704
415,525

1,327,179

1,670,769

During the year the Council held no collateral as security.
Liquidity risk
The Council has ready access to borrowings from the Money Markets to cover any day to day cash flow
need and whilst the PWLB provides access to longer terms funds, it also acts as a lender of last resort to
Councils. The Council is also required to provide a balanced budget by the Local Government Finance Act
1992, which ensures that sufficient monies are raised to cover annual expenditure. There is therefore no
significant risk that it will be unable to raise finance to meet its commitments under financial instruments.
The Council manages its liquidity position through the risk management procedures above (the setting and
approval of prudential indicators and the approval of the Treasury and Investment Strategy reports), as well
as through cash flow management procedures required by the Code of Practice. This seeks to ensure that
cash is available when needed.
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Re-financing and maturity risk
The Council maintains a debt and investment portfolio. Whilst the cash flow procedures above are
considered against the refinancing risk procedures, longer term risk to the Council relates to managing
exposure to replacing financial instruments as they mature. This risk relates to the maturing of longer term
financial liabilities.
The approved prudential indicator limits for the maturity structure of debt, and the limits on investments
placed for greater than one year are key parameters used to address this risk. The Council approved
Treasury and Investment Strategies address the main risks and the Financial Services Unit addresses the
operational risks within the approved parameters.
The maturity analysis of loans is as follows:
2007/08
£
Less than one year
Between one and two years
Between two and five years
More than five years

2008/09
£

333
333
501,000
7,327,779

0
0
2,500,000
5,325,112

7,829,445

7,825,112

All other payables are due to be paid in less than one year.
The Council does not hold any investments greater than one year.
Market risk
Interest rate risk
The Council is exposed to interest rate movements on its borrowings and investments. Movements in
interest rates have a complex impact on the Council, depending on how variable and fixed interest rates
move across differing financial instrument periods. For instance a rise in variable and fixed interest rates
would have the following effects:
•
•
•
•

borrowing at variable rates - the interest expense charged to the Income and Expenditure
Account will rise;
borrowing at fixed rates - the fair value of the borrowing liability will fall;
investments at variable rates - the interest income credited to the Income and Expenditure
Account will rise;
investments at fixed rates - the fair value of assets will fall.

Borrowings are not carried at fair value on the Balance Sheet, so nominal gains and losses on fixed rate
borrowings would not impact on the Income and Expenditure Account or the Statement of Recognised
Gains and Losses. However, changes in interest payable and receivable on variable rate borrowings
and investments, will be allocated to the Income and Expenditure Account and will effect the General
Fund Balance. Movements in the fair value of fixed rate investments will be reflected in the Statement of
Recognised Gains and Losses.
The Annual Treasury Management Strategy brings together the Council’s prudential indicators and its
expected treasury operations, including an expectation of interest rate movements. From this strategy a
prudential indicator is set which provides maximum limits for fixed and variable interest rate exposures. The
Financial Services Unit will monitor market and forecast interest rates within the year to adjust exposure
appropriately.
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If all interest rates had been 1% higher with all other variables held constant, the financial effect would be:
2007/08
£

2008/09
£

Increase in interest payable on variable rate borrowings
Increase in interest receivable on variable rate investments

0
127,422

0
128,500

Impact on Income and Expenditure Account (I&E)

127,422

128,500

Decrease in fair value of fixed rate investment assets

0

0

Impact on Statement of Recognised Gains and Losses (STRGL)

0

0

The impact of a 1% fall in interest rates would be as above but with the movements being reversed.
The PWLB has provided fair values for fixed rate loans, but information is not available to show the impact of
a 1% change in interest rates.
Price risk
The Council does not invest in equity shares. It therefore has no exposure to risk arising from movement in
prices.
Foreign exchange risk
The Council has no financial assets or liabilities denominated in foreign currencies. It therefore has no
exposure to loss arising from movements in exchange rates.
21

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
A great deal of work has been done on pay harmonisation and single status. However, the Council has
not undertaken a full job evaluation exercise as required by the 2004 National Agreement. This carries a
potential risk that the Council will need to use general reserves to defend and/or settle any successful claims
made against the Council. Since a job evaluation exercise has not been carried out, there is no information
available that can be used to form a view on the estimated future likely costs that the Council could face.
Currently there are court cases involving staff and also disputes with contractors where we may take or
defend legal action which may give rise to costs depending on the outcome.
The Council is part of the Essex wide concessionary travel scheme administered by Essex County Council.
The scheme provides free bus travel to persons over 60 years of age in the County of Essex. Under the
scheme the bus operators are re-imbursed in accordance with a formula that aims to compensate for the
extra cost of providing free travel in the County. An original appeal to the Department for Transport by
bus operators over amounts that had been paid to them by the Essex authorities paid was unsuccessful.
However, subsequently one bus operator has challenged the basis of how the Department of Transport
decided appeals against the scheme and has sought a judicial review to clarify this.
Should the judicial review find in favour of the bus operator this could significantly increase the cost of
the Essex scheme for 2007/08 and this Council would bear a share of this additional cost. This would be
required to be met from general reserves. However it is not possible to quantify this cost at present, should
it arise.
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CONTINGENT ASSET
The Council has submitted claims to HM Revenue and Customs (HMRC) to recover VAT and interest based
on the House of Lords decision in the joint cases of Michael Fleming v HMRC and Conde Nast Publications
Ltd v HMRC amounting to £926,804 net of consultant’s costs. £20,239 has been received and a further
£477,348 net of consultant’s fees is expected to be received from HMRC. There is no certainty that the
remaining balance will be paid.

23

ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS EMPLOYED
31/3/08
£

24

31/3/09
£

General Fund
Housing Revenue Account

9,405,397
106,335,545

8,947,696
93,215,022

Total

115,740,942

102,162,718

RESERVES
General Fund
The General Fund balance as at 31 March 2009 of £4,066,514 is made up of the following:
£
General reserve
Unspent commitments from 2008/09
Earmarked reserve: Fund for priorities
Earmarked reserve: Backlog maintenance works
Earmarked reserve: Regeneration initiatives
Earmarked reserve: Climate change initiatives

2,971,014
430,900
76,200
354,800
211,100
22,500

Balance 31 March 2009

4,066,514

Useable capital receipts
The movements during the year were as follows:
£

2008/09

Balance at 1 April 2008

£

1,434,500

Capital receipts
Costs

302,183
(158)

Pooled capital receipt passed to the Government
Receipts used for financing
Balance 31 March 2009

302,025
(225,144)
(76,881)
1,434,500

The balance carried forward of £1,434,500 includes an amount of £227,500 to be used to resource capital
expenditure in relation to affordable housing.
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Revaluation Reserve
The movements during the year were as follows:
2008/09
£
Balance at 1 April 2008

9,848,041

Revaluation of assets and impairment review
Current value depreciation above historical cost depreciation
Write out revaluation gains on disposal

(6,105,075)
(198,916)
(10,637)

Balance 31 March 2009

3,533,413

Capital Adjustment Account
The movements during the year were as follows:
£

2008/09

Balance at 1 April 2008

£

121,444,600

Financing of fixed assets
from capital receipts
from revenue contributions
from Major Repairs Reserve

76,881
47,804
1,118,603

Total for Financing of fixed assets

1,243,288

Net deficit for the year
Minimum revenue provision
Additional revenue provision
Government grants applied
Unamortised capital grants on disposal
Depreciation
Impairment charges
Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute
Disposal of assets
Current value depreciation above historical cost depreciation
Writing out of revaluation gains on disposal
Housing Revenue Account
- dwelling depreciation
- garage depreciation
Total for Net deficit for the year

216,559
122,898
91,353
166,570
(882,935)
(6,184,902)
(82,352)
(836,461)
198,916
10,637
(1,523,510)
(17,869)
(8,721,096)

Balance 31 March 2009

113,966,792
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Summary of the Movement in Reserves
The Council has the following reserves on the Balance Sheet. Some are required to be held for statutory
reasons and some are needed to comply with proper accounting practice.
Reserve

Balance
1 April
2008
Restated
£

Net
movement in
year

Balance
31 March
2009

Purpose of Reserve

Further Detail of
Movements

£

£
4,066,514 Resources available to
meet the future running
costs for Council
services excluding
council houses.

Statement of
Movement on the
General Fund
Balance. See note
above.

General
Fund

3,612,911

453,603

Housing
Revenue
Account
(HRA)

498,600

(2,627)

89,913

1,670

91,583 Any balance on this
reserve is held until it is
redistributed to Council
Tax payers when the
following year’s Council
Tax is set.

Collection Fund
Income and
Expenditure
Account and notes.

(21,242,000)

(196,000)

(21,438,000) Balancing account
to allow inclusion of
Pensions Liability in the
Balance Sheet.

Retirement benefits
and net pension
liability, note 19.

Revaluation
Reserve

9,848,041

(6,314,628)

3,533,413 Accumulation of gains
on revaluation of fixed
assets.

Shown in the
detailed note above.

Capital
Adjustment
Account

121,444,600

(7,477,808)

113,966,792 Accumulation of capital
resources set aside to
meet past expenditure.

Shown in the
detailed note above.

Useable
Capital
Receipts

1,434,500

0

1,434,500 Proceeds from the sale
of fixed assets available
to meet future capital
investment.

Shown in the
detailed note above.

Deferred
Credits

12,792

(849)

Major
Repairs
Reserve

41,585

(41,585)

115,740,942

(13,578,224)

Collection
Fund

Pension
Reserve

495,973 Resources available to
HRA Statements
meet the future running and notes.
costs of council houses.

11,943 Proceeds from the sale
of assets which are
received over a period
of time. These relate to
mortgage loans made for
sale of council houses.
0 Resources available to
Statement of
meet capital investments Movement on the
in council housing.
HRA Balance and
notes.
102,162,718
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25

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
The unaudited financial statements were authorised for issue on 24 June 2009 by the Council and
the audited financial statements have been authorised for issue on 18 September 2009 by the Head
of Resources. This 18 September 2009 date establishes the date after which events have not been
recognised in the Statement of Accounts.
The Council has been notified that it has been successful in its claim to recover VAT based on the House
of Lords decision in the joint cases of Michael Fleming v HM Revenue & Customs (HMRC) and Conde Nast
Publications Ltd v HMRC. The Council has received £20,239 and is expecting to receive £477,348 net of
consultant’s costs. These have not been reflected in the accounts. Any associated interest is yet to be
finalised.

26

RECONCILIATION OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT DEFICIT WITH NET CASH FLOW

£
Income and Expenditure Account deficit
Collection Fund (surplus)/deficit
Movement in Collection Fund due to
preceptors

2007/08
Restated

2008/09
£

£

1,776,133
(296,542)

7,902,861
1,308

252,476

(2,977)
7,901,192

1,732,067
Non-cash transactions
Depreciation and impairment of fixed assets
Depreciation on HRA dwelling and
garages
Government and other grants deferred
amortisation
Net loss on sale of assets
Release of Revenue provision
Movement in pension reserve

(973,101)

(7,067,838)

(1,514,020)

(1,541,378)

47,826
(320,469)
0
246,000

91,353
(370,549)
(100,042)
(524,000)
(2,513,764)

Items on an accruals basis
Decrease in stocks
Increase in debtors
(Increase)/decrease in creditors

(894)
268,965
(611,959)

(9,512,454)
(8,753)
484,718
1,049,684
1,525,649

(343,888)
Items included in another classification in
the cash flow statement on an accruals basis
Interest paid
Interest received

Net cash flow from revenue activities
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£

(470,796)
736,642

(446,348)
619,406
265,846

173,058

(859,739)

87,445
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RECONCILIATION OF NET CASH FLOW TO MOVEMENT IN NET DEBT
2007/08
£

28

(Increase)/decrease in cash in the period
Cash used to repay debt
Increase in borrowing
Cash used to (increase)/decrease liquid resources

854,052
(800,333)
0
(1,800,000)

140,733
(4,333)
0
1,650,000

Change in net debt
Net debt as at 1 April

(1,746,281)
122,286

1,786,400
(1,623,995)

Net debt as at 31 March

(1,623,995)

162,405

ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN NET DEBT
31/3/08
Balance
£

29

2008/09
£

31/3/09
Balance
£

Movement
In The Year
£

Cash and bank
Bank overdraft
Temporary investments available on demand

(101,523)
0
(1,051,870)

(11,380)
728,794
(1,730,074)

90,143
728,794
(678,204)

Decrease in cash
Debt due within 1 year
Debt due after 1 year
Other temporary investments

(1,153,393)
333
7,829,113
(8,300,048)

(1,012,660)
0
7,825,113
(6,650,048)

140,733
(333)
(4,000)
1,650,000

Net cash flow

(1,623,995)

162,405

1,786,400

ANALYSIS OF THE CHANGES IN THE MANAGEMENT OF LIQUID RESOURCES AND FINANCING
31/3/08
Balance
£
Borrowing
Public Works Loan Board
Mortgages
Total borrowing
Less temporary investments
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31/3/09
Balance
£

Movement
In The Year
£

7,825,113
4,333

7,825,113
0

0
(4,333)

7,829,446

7,825,113

(4,333)

(8,300,048)

(6,650,048)

1,650,000

(470,602)

1,175,065

(1,645,667)
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31

LIQUID RESOURCES

31/3/08
Balance
£

31/3/09
Balance
£

Movement
In The Year
£

Temporary investments
Less temporary investments available on demand

(9,351,918)
1,051,870

(8,380,122)
1,730,074

971,796
678,204

Liquid Resources

(8,300,048)

(6,650,048)

1,650,000

ANALYSIS OF GOVERNMENT GRANTS RECEIVED ON A CASH BASIS
2007/08
£

2008/09
£

Revenue Support Grant (RSG)
Housing benefit subsidy
National Non-domestic Rates administration grant
Housing benefit administration grant
Discretionary housing payment grant
Homelessness revenue grant
Planning delivery grant
Building safer communities grant
Building capacity fund
Waste performance efficiency grant
Local Authority Business Growth Incentive scheme grant (LABGI)
Implementation of smokefree legislation grant
Electoral service funding
Contaminated land grant
Local housing allowance implementation
Housing benefit scan data grant
Implementation of employment and support allowance
Concessionary travel grant
Gypsy and traveller accommodation assessment
Climate change grant
Information Council Tax and Non-domestic Rates Demand
Notices grant
National indicator 160 survey grant
Disabled facilities grants
Decent homes capital allocation grant

(871,835)
(20,896,192)
(81,700)
(547,594)
(30,303)
(60,000)
(213,363)
(151,922)
(119,149)
(18,766)
(59,067)
(35,661)
(6,637)
(989)
(96,858)
(4,800)
(19,386)
(65,576)
(8,475)
0

(770,033)
(22,836,522)
(85,860)
(579,935)
(25,211)
(60,000)
(56,114)
(98,331)
(40,291)
0
(222,810)
0
(3,315)
0
(237)
0
(1,454)
(208,623)
0
(22,500)

0
0
(136,000)
(135,132)

(4,395)
(8,000)
(135,000)
(172,300)

Revenue grants

(23,559,405)

(25,330,931)

(37,532)
(28,172)
(62,099)

0
0
(27,018)

0
0

(5,300)
(26,855)

(127,803)

(59,173)

(23,687,208)

(25,390,104)

Revenue grants

Capital grants
Waste performance efficiency grant
Contaminated land grant
Planning delivery grant
Information Council Tax and Non-domestic Rates Demand
Notices grant
Free swimming programme
Capital grants
Total grants
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HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT (HRA) INCOME AND EXPENDITURE
ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2009
2007/08
£

NOTES

2008/09
£

INCOME
5,510,275
169,572
520,398

Gross dwelling rents
Gross non-dwelling rents
Charges for services and facilities

6,200,245

TOTAL INCOME

1
2
3

5,626,259
179,825
535,940
6,342,024

EXPENDITURE
903,265
1,904,410
287,117
1,803,850
1,514,020
19,604

Repairs and maintenance
Supervision and management
Rents, rates, taxes and other charges
Negative subsidy transferable to the General Fund
Depreciation and impairment of fixed assets
Increase in provision for bad or doubtful debts

6,432,266

TOTAL EXPENDITURE

232,021
26,240
0
258,261

4
5
6

986,357
1,765,118
369,090
2,005,118
7,656,508
61,592
12,843,783

NET COST OF HRA SERVICES AS INCLUDED IN THE WHOLE
AUTHORITY INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

6,501,759

HRA services share of Corporate and Democratic Core
HRA share of other amounts included in the whole Authority
net cost of services but not allocated to specific service

28,594
104,800

NET COST OF HRA SERVICES

6,635,153

HRA SHARE OF THE OPERATING INCOME AND
EXPENDITURE INCLUDED IN THE WHOLE AUTHORITY
INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT
0
(133,530)
124,731

Gain on disposal of HRA fixed assets
Interest and Investment income
DEFICIT FOR THE YEAR ON HRA SERVICES
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9

(116,581)
(116,844)
6,401,728

STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT ON THE
HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT (HRA) BALANCE
2007/08

NOTES

£

2008/09
£

124,731

Deficit for the year on the HRA Income and Expenditure
Account

£

6,401,728

Amounts included in the HRA Income and
Expenditure Account but excluded when determining
the movement on HRA Balance for the year
0
0
(67,842)

Impairment of fixed assets
Net gain on sale of fixed assets
Net charges made for retirement benefits in
accordance with FRS17

6

(6,115,130)
116,581

12

(72,617)

(67,842)

(6,071,166)
Amounts not included in the HRA Income and
Expenditure Account but included in the movement
on HRA Balance for the year

0
120,531
(438,973)

Capital expenditure charged in year to the Housing
Revenue Account Balance
Employers contributions payable to pension fund
Transfer to Major Repairs Reserve

12
14

(318,442)

31,593
104,832
(464,360)
(327,935)

(261,553)

Decrease/(Increase) in the Housing Revenue Account Balance

(237,047)

Housing Revenue Account surplus brought forward

(498,600)

(498,600)

Housing Revenue Account surplus carried forward

(495,973)
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NOTES TO THE HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT (HRA)
1

GROSS DWELLING RENTS
This is the total rent collectable for the year after allowance is made for empty property. The average
weekly rent per dwelling in 2008/09 was £71.01 compared with £67.86 in 2007/08, an increase of £3.15 or
4.64%.

2

GROSS NON-DWELLING RENTS
This is the total income receivable from garages, after allowance is made for empty property, wayleaves,
easements and any other lettings.

3

CHARGES FOR SERVICES AND FACILITIES
This is income receivable from tenants for services paid for by the Council such as heating, water and
sewerage.

4

RENTS, RATES, TAXES AND OTHER CHARGES
This includes expenditure on services provided to tenants such as heating, water and sewerage.

5

NEGATIVE SUBSIDY TRANSFERABLE TO THE GENERAL FUND
From April 2004 the Government determined that HRA Rent Rebates, together with the associated Rent
Rebates Subsidy received from the Department for Work and Pensions must be charged/credited to the
General Fund instead of the HRA.
The transfer of HRA Rent Rebates and Rent Rebate Subsidy from the HRA to the General Fund results in
a negative subsidy entitlement in the HRA that becomes payable to the Department for Communities and
Local Government (DCLG).
The negative subsidy is analysed as follows:
2007/08
£

6

2008/09
£

Allowance for management
Allowance for maintenance
Allowance for major repairs
Charges for capital
Less rental income
Less interest on receipts

660,947
1,440,256
1,075,045
94,047
(5,073,870)
(275)

685,851
1,441,308
1,077,021
95,142
(5,304,372)
(68)

Total

(1,803,850)

(2,005,118)

DEPRECIATION OF FIXED ASSETS
The HRA receives a depreciation charge based on the value, age and condition of property calculated in
accordance with proper practices. Depreciation on HRA dwellings in excess of the Major Repairs Allowance
and on assets other than HRA dwellings is adjusted through the Transfer to the Major Repairs Reserve.
The depreciation for the year is £1,541,378.
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IMPAIRMENT
In the light of recent economic events an impairment review of the Councils property portfolio was carried
out by Wilks Head and Eve during April 2009 providing valuations as at 31 March 2009. The valuer
considered that the general effects of the economic market now constitute so significant an effect as
to require an impairment of the assets. Impairments were found to be appropriate on assets that were
previously valued at 1 April 2008. The impairment percentage which was applied to the Housing Revenue
Account was 15.3% which amounted to £6,115,130.
Impairments in the year were written off against revaluation gains attributable to the relevant asset in the
Revaluation Reserve with any excess being charged to the HRA. Impairment losses charged to the HRA
Income and Expenditure Account are appropriated from the Statement of Movement on the HRA Balance to
the Capital Adjustment Account to avoid having any impact on rent levels.
7

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND RECEIPTS
Capital expenditure of £1,150,195 in 2008/09 (£1,043,786 in 2007/08) was funded by £1,118,603 from the
Major Repairs Reserve and £31,592 by a contribution from the Housing Revenue Account.
Capital receipts from the disposal of operational assets received during 2008/09 were £300,192 (£1,207,426
in 2007/08). The useable element during 2008/09 was £75,048 (£301,856 in 2007/08).
The Council has taken advantage of an exemption to the regulations requiring local authorities to pay over
to the Government 50% of all capital receipts received from the disposal of housing land, by designating its
use for the delivery of affordable housing or regeneration projects. Of the £798,170 received in 2004/05,
£227,500 was specifically for the provision of affordable housing in the Borough, and has been fully retained
by the Council. This is still being held for this purpose.

8

HOUSING ASSETS
The value of the Council’s operational housing assets shown in the balance sheet as at 31 March 2009 was
£93,297,574 (£106,391,235 as at 31 March 2008). Of this £92,167,293 related to dwellings (£105,087,451, as
at 31 March 2008) and £1,130,277 related to garages (£1,303,780 as at 31 March 2008) and £4 related to
land (£4 as at 31 March 2008).
The vacant possession value of Council dwellings as at 1 April 2008 was £201,607,000 (£199,296,000 as at
1 April 2007). The vacant possession and balance sheet values of HRA dwellings show the economic cost
of providing council housing at less than open market rents.

9

INVESTMENT INCOME
Details of the HRA’s investment income are as follows:
2007/08
£

2008/09
£

Mortgage interest
Capital financing interest
Other interest receivable

104
118,638
14,788

48
98,761
18,035

Total

133,530

116,844

Mortgage interest is the interest receivable from loans made by the Council to tenants enabling them to
purchase their Council houses.
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10

HOUSING STOCK
The Council sold 3 council houses during 2008/09. An analysis of the Council’s housing stock is as follows:
Dwelling Types
1 bedroom
2 bedroom
3 bedroom
4 bedroom
Bedsitters
Total

11

31/3/08
Number

31/3/09
Number

496
382
451
10
203

496
380
450
10
203

1,542

1,539

GARAGES
As at 31 March 2009, the Council had 432 garages located in blocks (432 as at 31 March 2008).

12

PENSION COSTS
As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers and employees, the Council offers
retirement benefits. Although these benefits will not actually be payable until employees retire, the Council
has a commitment to make payments which need to be disclosed at the time that employees earn their
future entitlement.
The Council participates in the Local Government Pension Scheme administered by Essex County Council.
This is a funded scheme, meaning that the Council and employees pay contributions into a fund, calculated
at a level intended to balance the pensions’ liabilities with investment assets over the long term.
The Council recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the Net Cost of Services when they are earned by
employees, rather than when the benefits are actually paid as pensions. However, the charge the Council
is required to make against the Housing Revenue Account is based on the cash payable in the year, so
the real cost of retirement benefits is reversed out of the Housing Revenue Account in the Statement of
Movements to the Housing Revenue Account Balance.
The following transactions have been made through the Housing Revenue Account Income and Expenditure
Account and the Statement of Movement on the Housing Revenue Account Balance during the year:
2007/08
£
Income and Expenditure Account
Cost of pensions included in Net Cost of Services

2008/09
£

67,842

72,617

Statement of Movement on Housing Revenue Account
Balance
Reversal of net charges made for retirement benefits in
accordance with FRS 17
Employer’s contributions payable to the scheme

(67,842)
120,531

(72,617)
104,832

Net change on Statement of Movement on the Housing
Revenue Account Balance

52,689

32,215
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13

RENT ARREARS
The total value of rent arrears as at 31 March 2009 was £253,432 (£187,089 as at 31 March 2008). A
provision of £100,496 (£78,357 as at 31 March 2008) has been included in the Balance Sheet to meet
possible future bad debts.

14

MAJOR REPAIRS RESERVE (MRR)
The Council is required to maintain a Major Repairs Reserve (MRR). The items to be credited to the
reserve are an amount equal to HRA dwelling depreciation for the year, and transfers from the HRA required
by statutory provision. Items chargeable to the reserve include capital expenditure for HRA purposes, and
transfers to the HRA required by statutory provision. Movements in the Major Repairs Reserve during the
year were as follows:
2007/08
£
Balance brought forward

2008/09
£

(10,324)

(41,585)

Total depreciation for the year (transfer from Capital Adjustment Account)

(1,514,020)

(1,541,378)

Less - non-dwelling depreciation (transfer to HRA)
- dwelling depreciation in excess of MRA (transfer to HRA)
- capital expenditure financed by MRR

17,869
421,104
1,043,786

17,868
446,492
1,118,603

(41,585)

0

Balance carried forward
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COLLECTION FUND INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2009
2007/08
£

Notes

2008/09
£

1

40,641,882

INCOME

39,018,636

5,606,280

906

Council Tax
Income from Council Tax
Transfers from the General Fund
Council tax benefit

6,044,601

Community Charge
Adjustment for previous year’s Community Charge

11,353,993

Business Rates
Income collectable from business ratepayers

55,979,815

TOTAL INCOME

0

2

12,428,803
59,115,286

EXPENDITURE

6,723,286
31,726,828
3,680,369
1,894,224

Precepts and Demands
Castle Point Borough Council
Essex County Council
Essex Police Authority
Essex Fire Authority

7,003,000
33,196,376
3,876,574
1,975,397

11,272,293
81,700

Business Rates
Contribution to national pool
Costs of collection

12,346,033
82,770

170,971
(31,555)

Bad and Doubtful Debts
Write-offs
Provisions

169,183
30,414

165,157

Contributions
Towards previous year’s estimated Collection Fund surplus

436,847

55,683,273

TOTAL EXPENDITURE

59,116,594

MOVEMENT ON FUND BALANCE
309,272
296,542

Surplus brought forward
Surplus/(deficit) for the year

605,814

SURPLUS CARRIED FORWARD

605,814
(1,308)
3
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NOTES TO THE COLLECTION FUND INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT
1

COUNCIL TAX BASE
The Council’s tax base, i.e. the number of chargeable dwellings in each valuation band (adjusted for
dwellings where discounts apply) converted to an equivalent number of band D dwellings, was calculated as
follows:
Band
Number of dwellings
after discounts
Ratio
Number of band D
equivalent dwellings

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

TOTAL

1,700

5,268

12,169

7,808

3,984

1,636

557

53

6:9

7:9

8:9

9:9

11:9

13:9

15:9

18:9

1,132

4,097

10,817

7,808

4,869

2,363

928

106

Collection rate
adjustment

32,120
(402)

Council Tax Base
2

33,175

31,718

INCOME COLLECTABLE FROM NATIONAL NON-DOMESTIC RATES (NNDR)
NNDR is administered on a national basis. The Government specifies a multiplier of 46.2p (44.4p in
2007/08) and subject to the effects of transitional arrangements and any reliefs, local businesses pay rates
calculated by multiplying their rateable value by the multiplier. The Council is responsible for collecting rates
due from the ratepayers in its area but pays the proceeds into a pool administered by the Government. The
Government redistributes the pool to local authorities on a population basis.
The following table shows net income collectable from ratepayers:
2007/08
Restated
£

2008/09

National non-domestic rateable value as at 1 April
Multiplier

31,023,430
.444

30,710,300
.462

Total

13,774,403

14,188,159

(250,422)

(141)

Gross amount collectable

13,523,981

14,188,018

Less allowances and other adjustments

(2,169,988)

(1,759,215)

Net income collectable from ratepayers

11,353,993

12,428,803

In period revaluation
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3

SURPLUS AS AT 31 MARCH
Any surplus or deficit on the Fund is shared between the billing authority (this Council) and the precepting
authorities (Essex County Council, Essex Police Authority and Essex Fire Authority) and is included in the
calculation of the Council Tax for the following year. The surplus or deficit arising from the previous local tax
(Community Charge) is allocated solely to this Council.
£
Council Tax - Castle Point Borough Council
- Essex County Council
- Essex Police Authority
- Essex Fire Authority

2007/08

£

£

89,007
438,585
51,217
26,099

Community Charge - Castle Point Borough Council
Surplus as at 31 March

2008/09

£

90,797
434,370
52,234
26,319
604,908

603,720

906

786

605,814

604,506

The surplus attributable to Castle Point Borough Council as at 31 March 2009 is £91,583. Of this £90,797
arises from Council Tax and £786 from Community Charge. The surplus is shown under Reserves on the
Balance Sheet.
The amounts owed to Essex County Council, Essex Fire Authority and Essex Police Authority are shown
within Creditors and Long-Term Creditors on the Balance Sheet.
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ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
1

SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY
Castle Point Borough Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance with
the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used
economically, efficiently and effectively. Castle Point Borough Council also has a duty under the Local
Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its
functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.
In discharging this overall responsibility, Castle Point Borough Council is responsible for putting in place
proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, which
includes arrangements for the management of risk.
Castle Point Borough Council has approved and adopted a code of corporate governance, which is
consistent with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering Good Governance in Local
Government. This statement explains how Castle Point Borough Council has complied with the code and
also meets the requirements of regulation 4(2) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 as amended
by the Accounts and Audit (Amendment) (England) Regulations 2006 in relation to the production and
publication of a statement on internal control.

2

THE PURPOSE OF THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK
The governance framework comprises the systems, processes, culture and values, by which the Council
is directed and controlled and its activities through which it accounts to, engages with and leads the
community. It enables the Council to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider
whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services.
The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to manage risk to a
reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives and can
therefore only provide reasonable, and not absolute, assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal
control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the
Council’s policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact
should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.
The governance framework has been in place at Castle Point Borough Council for the year ended 31 March
2009 and up to the date of approval of the statement of accounts.
Operation of the governance framework
The governance framework ensures the Council’s vision and key priorities are effectively promoted and
progressed through its corporate governance arrangements and business planning processes. The key
elements of the governance framework are as follows:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Community Engagement
Business Strategy and Planning
Financial Reporting including Budgetary Control
Asset Management
Policy Framework
Risk Management including Fraud and Corruption, Whistleblowing, Health and Safety and Business
Continuity
Performance Management
Information Governance
Data Quality
Value for Money
Procurement
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•
•
•
•

Partnerships
Project Management
Complaints
Codes of Conduct for Members and Staff

These areas form the main sources of assurance to be considered in any review of the internal control
environment. In support of the review process, a code of governance has been produced setting out the
detailed procedures to be reviewed in each area before an opinion on the effectiveness of the system of
internal control can be expressed.
The Assistant Chief Executive has been given the responsibility for overseeing the implementation and
monitoring of the Code, through a process which consists of:
•
•
•
•

quarterly reports to Executive Management Team and the Audit Committee which set out:
o
weaknesses identified in the governance arrangements;
o
any corrective action necessary to resolve concerns identified
an annual review of the governance framework supported by officer assurance statements certified
by service managers
an annual report to Executive Management Team and the Audit Committee on the adequacy of
governance arrangements
an annual refresh of the Local Code of Governance.

The Council's key governance and business planning processes are also subject to audit on a risk basis.
This work forms part of the evidence in support of the Head of Internal Audit's annual opinion on the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Council's systems of internal control.
The full code of governance document and associated appendices are available from the Assistant Chief
Executive by e-mailing crwatts@castlepoint.gov.uk or by telephoning: 01268 882419.
3

REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS
Castle Point Borough Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the
effectiveness of its governance framework including the system of internal control. The review of
effectiveness is informed by the work of the Heads of Service within the Council who have responsibility
for the development and maintenance of the governance environment, the Head of Internal Audit’s annual
report, and also by comments made by the external auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates.
Reviewing the effectiveness of the framework
The Monitoring Officer is responsible for the maintenance of the Constitution and for reviewing its relevance
and effectiveness. Any changes to the Constitution are approved by Full Council following consideration of a
report made by the Chief Executive. In addition, any changes in the Constitution relating to ethical codes or
protocols will have been reported and agreed by the Standards Committee before they can be approved by
Full Council.
Decisions made by the Cabinet may be Called-in (in accordance with the procedure for a Call-in, which is
shown in the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules).  A decision made by Cabinet is published within 4
working days of the Cabinet meeting and can be called-in for consideration by the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee within 5 working days of the publication by either the Chairman of the committee or by 3
committee members.
There are 3 Policy Development Groups which may make proposals in relation to their particular functions,
including the review and development of policy items, whose proposals support the Council’s published
priorities.
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The Council’s major policy objectives and priorities are detailed in the Corporate Plan, and are subject to
an annual progress review and updating agreed by full Council in June of each year. Priorities are subject
to annual consultation through a survey undertaken with a representative citizens’ panel. The priorities
and objectives are set out in a corporate plan which is subject to consultation each year with the public,
Councillors and partner organisations in the Local Strategic Partnership (LSP).
The Corporate Plan is underpinned by detailed improvement plans that are monitored by the Programme
Board monthly to ensure that improvement is being delivered. The Programme Board consists of senior
officers, the Leader and Deputy Leader of the Council and has the key role of ensuring improvement
planning is achieving key milestones.
The Head of Service in consultation with the Head of Legal Services identifies any forthcoming relevant
legislation and is responsible for ensuring that Executive Management Team are appraised of the
implications and what action the Council may need to take to ensure compliance. The Head of Legal
Services ensures the Cabinet is appraised of the implications of legislation that affects the Council
corporately.
Key corporate performance indicators and targets are monitored on a quarterly basis by the Executive
Management Team and the Cabinet. These are directly related to corporate priorities and key improvement
initiatives. The focus on improvement planning has resulted in tangible improvements. The Annual Audit and
Inspection letter received by the Council in March 2009 reported that in 2007/08, 74 per cent of performance
indicators improved, compared to an average of 59 per cent for all district councils. This makes the Council
the 12th best improving out of 388 councils nationally. In 2007/08, 51 per cent of performance indicators
were among the best nationally; compared to the average of 33 per cent for all districts. Furthermore a
recent assessment of the new national indicator results for 2008/09 concluded that 61 per cent had met or
exceeded the target set.
A range of efficiency savings identified at the start of the year and delivered within the year fulfilled the
criteria established by the Council in liaison and agreement with its external auditors. The overall efficiency
target of £228,000 has been exceeded.
The Council’s performance management arrangements were reviewed through the recent direction of travel
statement undertaken by the Audit Commission. It concluded that: “Robust performance management
arrangements support the delivery of corporate priorities”.
Financial monitoring reports are informed by a risk assessment and focus on the Council’s large, high risk
or volatile budgets. Departures from budget, and corresponding operational performance information, are
reported to Cabinet on a monthly basis.
Corporate and service risk registers were formally reviewed and reported upon each quarter. Risks
and health and safety issues were also discussed at team meetings during the year. A summary report
on risk management was produced each quarter and reported to Executive Management Team and a
six monthly report was produced for the Audit Committee. Internal audit undertook a review of the risk
management arrangements and workshops with officers and members were held to help further develop the
arrangements.
The Health and Safety Policy was kept under continuous review and updated by the Health & Safety Officer.
Working practices and risk assessments were reviewed and updated where appropriate.
Financial, internal control and value for money arrangements are reviewed using the use of resources key
lines of enquiry assessed by External Audit. This has resulted in sustained improvement planning. The
Council retained an overall Level 3 for the use of resources assessment in 2008.
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Internal Audit
The annual risk based audit plan was prepared in consultation with Executive Management Team and the
Audit Committee. The audit plan was delivered with reports issued to senior managers at the conclusion
of each audit highlighting internal control weaknesses identified and the actions required to address them.
Recommendations were also reviewed to ensure they were implemented properly, by the due date. A
quarterly summary audit report was taken to Executive Management Team. The Head of Internal Audit
annual report and opinion was also considered by the Audit Committee.
Internal Audit has been subject to regular review by external audit in order that they can place reliance on
their audit work. The statutory annual assessment of Internal Audit’s performance was reviewed by the
Assistant Chief Executive and reported to the Audit Committee.
Audit Committee
The Audit Committee consists of a chairman and two other members. The committee provides independent
assurance of the adequacy of the risk management framework and associated control environment. It
also undertakes an independent scrutiny of the authority’s financial and non financial performance, and it
oversees the financial reporting process.
External Audit
External Audit is undertaken by PKF (UK) LLP and reviews the design of controls in place within the
core financial systems if relevant to their audit opinion. Where the auditor identifies weaknesses in the
Council’s arrangements, these are highlighted in the Annual Governance Report. The auditors also
review the arrangements in place for securing data quality and value for money, as well as internal control
arrangements such as risk management. These are key elements of the use of resources audit. This is
reported to the Audit Committee, together with an action plan to address any concerns and an update of
outstanding issues from previous action plans.
External Inspections
Other external inspections review the effectiveness of the arrangements the Council has in place in those
areas relevant to their particular interest. These include bodies such as the Benefits Fraud Inspectorate
or through validation processes for Investors in People, and the Equality Standard. In 2008/09 an annual
direction of travel statement inspection was undertaken and concluded that the Council is delivering against
all its priority areas and providing quality services to vulnerable people.
We have been advised on the implications of the result of the review of the effectiveness of the governance
framework by the Audit Committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement
of the system is in place.
Significant governance issues
The following are the key governance issues that have been identified:
Action 2009/10

Date of
implementation

No.

Issue

1.

The need to improve
Implement a programme 31 March 2010
processes to achieve
of Value for Money
value for money, including
reviews.
significant actual cost
reductions, and to
demonstrate outcomes in
relation to improving areas of
weaker performance.
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Date of
implementation

Responsible
officer

No.

Issue

Action 2009/10

2.

Performance management
processes need further redesign to be fully effective,
particularly integration
with the LSP performance
management framework and
the wider use of Covalent
performance management
systems.

Implement a simpler
31 December 2009 Craig Watts
performance
management framework
and implement control
mechanisms to ensure
the robustness of action
planning and target
setting.

3.

Greater community
engagement mechanisms
need to be implemented.

Enhance the approach
to neighbourhood
meetings to ensure
greater attendance
and opportunity for
participating in decision
making by residents.

31 December 2009 Mel Harris

4.

The need to continue to
develop the approach
to improving data
quality processes and
responsibilities.

Implement the data
quality strategy to make
sure all stakeholders,
including partners are
aware of roles and
responsibilities.

31 March 2010

Craig Watts

5.

Following the re-organisation Update the Business
there is a need for the
Continuity Plan
Business Continuity Plan
to be updated and for
processes to be embedded
for all services and with
significant partners and
contractors.

31 March 2010

Chris Mills

6.

Following the reUndertake a review of
organisation, there is a need Leisure Services
to undertake a fundamental
review of Leisure Services
to ensure it provides value
for money and has robust
processes in place to ensure
key governance processes
are met.

31 March 2010

Devinia Board
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Date of
implementation

Responsible
officer

No.

Issue

Action 2009/10

7.

Following the reorganisation, there is a
need to further develop the
processes and procedures
in place to ensure there is
fully effective management
arrangements in place for
Housing Services.

Undertake a review
31 March 2010
of the processes and
procedures in place
within Housing Services
and implement identified
improvements.

Steve Rogers

8.

There is a need to further
support the work of
Overview and Scrutiny
Committee to enhance the
effectiveness of the work of
the committee.

Create an officer
30 September
working group to support 2009
and assist the work of
Overview and Scrutiny
members and to provide
assistance in delivering
the forward plan of the
committee.

Andrew Smith

We propose over the coming year to take steps to address the above matters to further enhance our governance
arrangements. We are satisfied that these steps will address the need for improvements that were identified in our
review of effectiveness and will monitor their implementation and operation as part of our next annual review.

David Marchant
Chief Executive
24 June 2009

Councillor Pam Challis
Leader of the Council
24 June 2009
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS
Accruals concept
Income and expenditure are recognised when they
are earned or incurred, not when money is received or
paid.
Actuarial Gains and Losses
For a defined benefit pension scheme, the changes in
actuarial surplus and deficits that arise because either
events have not coincided with previous actuarial
assumptions, or where actuarial assumptions have
changed.

Corporate Management Costs – concerns
those activities which provide the infrastructure
which allows services to be provided, whether
by the Council or not, and the information
required for public accountability.

Creditor
Amounts owed by the Council but not paid at the
balance sheet date.

Balance Sheet
A statement of all the assets, liabilities, funds, reserves
etc. of the Council. It brings together details of the
individual funds maintained by the Council.
Capital Expenditure
Expenditure on the acquisition of a fixed asset or
expenditure which adds to, and not merely maintains,
the value of an existing asset.

Current Asset
An asset held which will be used or received within the
next financial year.
Current Liability
An amount which will become payable or could be
called in within the next financial year.
Debtor
Amounts owed to the Council but not paid at the
balance sheet date.

Capital Receipt
The proceeds from the sale of a fixed asset. The
government prescribes the amount of the receipt
which must be set aside to repay debt and the
useable amount which may be used to finance capital
expenditure.

Depreciation
The loss in value of an asset due to age, wear and
tear, deterioration or obsolescence spread over the
useful life of the asset.
Fair value
The amount for which an asset could be exchanged or
a liability settled in an open market.

Carrying amount
The principal amount plus accrued interest at the
balance sheet date.
Collection Fund
All receipts of Council Tax and National Non-Domestic
Rates are paid into this Fund. The Council uses this
money to pay its precepts to Essex County Council,
Essex Police Authority and Essex Fire Authority, and
the demand by the Council’s General Fund, which
finances the Council’s day to day expenditure.
Corporate and Democratic Core
This incorporates the following sub-divisions, the
activities of which can not be charged to services
under the Best Value Accounting Code of Practice:
•

•

Democratic Representation and Management
costs – includes all aspects of Members
activities including corporate, programme and
service policy making, general governance and
representing local interests

Fixed Assets
Tangible assets that yield benefit to the Council and
the service it provides for a period of more than one
year.
General Fund
This is the main Income and Expenditure account
which summarises the cost of all services (except
those related to Council Housing) provided by the
Council.
Government Grants
Grants made by the Government towards either
revenue or capital expenditure to support the cost of
the provision of the Council’s services. These grants
may be specifically towards the cost of particular
schemes or to support the revenue spend of the
Council.
Housing Revenue Account
Reflects a statutory obligation to account separately
for local authority housing provision. It shows the
major elements of housing revenue expenditure and
how this is met by rents, subsidy and other income.
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS
Impairment
A reduction in the value of a fixed asset caused by
an event occurring to the asset or to the economic
environment in which it operates.

Net Cost of Services
The total cost of providing services after deducting any
specific grant or other income.
Net debt
Total borrowings and obligations less cash and liquid
resources.

Income and Expenditure Account
An account that brings together income and
expenditure relating to all of the Council’s functions. It
demonstrates how the costs have been financed from
government grants and income from local taxpayers.
Further information is shown in the Explanatory
Foreword.

Non-distributed Costs
These are overheads for which no user benefits
and are not therefore apportioned to services. For
example pensions arising from discretionary added
years service.

Intangible Assets
Fixed Assets that do not have a physical substance
but are identifiable and are controlled by an entity
through custody or legal rights. This will include
software licences.

Precept
The levy made by precepting authorities on billing
authorities, requiring the latter to collect income from
Council Taxpayers on their behalf, such as Essex
County Council, Essex Police Authority and Essex Fire
Authority.

Leases
These can be either:
•

•

Principal amount
The face value of debt – borrowed or lent.

Finance lease – a lease that transfers
substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership of a fixed asset to the lessee.

Public Works Loan Board (PWLB)
A central government agency which provides loans
for one year and above to authorities at interest rates
only slightly higher than those at which the government
itself can borrow.

Operating lease – a lease other than a finance
lease.

Liquid Resources
Readily disposable short-term investments.

Reserves
These result from events which have allowed money to
be set aside or surpluses of income over expenditure.
They are not allocated to specific liabilities in the way
that provisions are although earmarked reserves are
allocated for specific purposes. Unallocated reserves
are often described as balances.

Materiality concept
Refers to the premise that the financial statements
often can not be precisely accurate but this need not
distract from their ability to be fairly stated. Within
certain limits a tolerance is permitted in measurement
and disclosure of financial statement items and the
concept of materiality determines the degree of this
tolerance.
Minimum Revenue Provision
This is the minimum amount which must be charged to
the revenue account each year in order to provide for
the repayment of loans and other amounts borrowed
by the Council.
National Non-domestic Rates
A flat rate in the pound set by central government and
levied on businesses. The money is collected by the
Council and then passed to central government who
reallocate the income to all Councils in proportion to
their population.

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under
statute
Expenditure normally categorised as capital
expenditure which does not result in or remain
matched with a fixed asset and which may be
properly deferred. An example of a deferred charge is
expenditure on improvement grants.
Substance Over Form
This concept requires that transactions and other
events are accounted for and represented in financial
statements with regard to their economic substance
and financial reality rather than just their legal form.
Useful Life
The period over which benefits will be derived from the
use of a fixed asset.
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